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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Head Office Management of MCB Bank Limited — 5ri Lanka Branch
Report on the Audit of the Financial 5Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of MCB Bank Limited — Sri Lanka Branch ("the Branch”) which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the income statement, statement
of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Branch as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 5ri Lanka (CA Sri Lanka
Code of Ethics”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the CA 5ri Lanka
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion,

Other Matter

The financial statements of the branch for the year ended 31 December 2023 were audited by another firm
of auditors whose report, dated 28 March 2024 expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements,

Other Information

Branch Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the supplemental Basel lll disclosures but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion an the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Branch Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Branch Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and for such internal control as Branch management

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Branch management is responsible for assessing the Branch's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless Branch management either intends to liquidate the Branch or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Branch's tinancial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial S5tatements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SLAUSs will always detect a material misstaterment when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SLAUSs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
sceplicism throughout the audit, We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulling from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Branch’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Branch management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Branch management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Branch's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Branch Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.

Report on legal and other regulatory requirements

Requirements of section 39 of the Banking Act No 30 of 1988 (as amended by Banking Act No.24 of 2024)

We have obtained all the information and explanations that were required for the audit. As far as appears
from our examination, in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Bank.

In our opinion the disclosures made in the accompanying financial statements are in accordance with the
requirements of Circular No. 05 of 2024 issued by Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

N lh i A0 s

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
COLOMBO

28 February 2025
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MCB BANK LIMITED - SRI LANKA BRANCH

INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 2023
{all amounts are in 5ri Lankan Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Mote
Interest income 2,635,778,601 4,139,378,624
Interest expenses 11,081,327,283) 1,373,373,6921
Met interest income 7 1,554,451,318 2,766,004,932
Fee and commission income 111,379,904 99,330,933
Fae and commission Bxpense (27,118,791} [25,606,678)
Met fee and commission income 8 B4 261,118 F3,724,255
Mot gain/(loss) from trading a4, 06/ 43,025
Met fair value gains/(losses) from fingnoal
instruments at fair value through profit or loss -
MNet gains/{losses) from derecognition of financial
assets .
Other operating income 9 201,221,224 441,134,291
Total operating income 1,839,978,727 3,280,910,503
Impairment reversal f{charges) 10 190,477,090 {315,203,842)
Met operating income 2.030,455,818 2,965, 706,661
Personnel expenses 11 [46%,625,4649) [485,157,734)
Depreciation and amortization expenses 20,21 (88,876,620 (84, 750,068)
Other expenscs 12 [b03,808,.068) (444, IbG.EEE:i
Operating profit before VAT & 55CL on financial services 968,145,654 1,951,042,023
Yalue Added Tax (VAT) on financial services (217,652,153} {367, h466,216)
Social Security Contribution Levy [S5CL) on financial services [29,845,422) {51,762,041)
Operating profit after VAT & 55CL on financial services 720,648,079 1,531,713, /a6
Income Tax expenscs 13 [337,737,838) [554,4970,203)
Profit for the year 382,910,240 976,743,563

Profit attributable to:

Cquity holders of the parent 382,910,240 976,743,563
Mon-controlling interests - -

Figures in brackets indicate deductions
The Accounting policies and notes on pages 10 through 84 form an integral part of the financial statements.

et
rﬁ"w&



MCB BANK LIMITED - SRI LANKA BRANCH

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
tall amounts are in 5ri Lankan Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Profit/(loss) for the year

Items that will be reclassified to income statement

Exchanpe differences on translation of foreipn operations
Met gains/{losses) on cash flow hedges

Met pains/(losses) on investments in debt instruments measured at fair value through

other comprahensive income

Share of profits of associates and joint ventures

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
Others {specify)

Less: Tax expense/ [reversal) relating to items that will be reclassified to income

stalement
Items that will not be reclassified to income statement

Change in Fair value on investments in equity instruments designated at fair value
through aother comprehensive incame

Change in fair value allnbutable to change in the Bank's own credit risk on financial
liabilities designated al Tair value through profit or loss

Re-measurament of post-employmeant benefit obligations

Changes in revaluation surplus

Share of profits of associates and joint ventures

Othors {spocify)

Loss: Tax expense relating to items that will not be reclassified to income statement
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes

Total comprehensive income for the year
Attributable to:
Equity halders af the parent

Mon-controlling interests

Figures in brockets indicate deductions.

2024

382,910,240

[154,186,732)

[61,029,116)

Page 5

2023

976,743,563

(232,915,163)

84,459,449

15,849,057 |22,890,156)
{11,265,169) {12,414,453)
3,445 375 3,724,336
{207,186,586)  (179,995,987)
175,723,654 796,747,576
175,723,654 798,747,576

The Accounting policies and notes on pages 10 through Gd form an integral part of the financial statements.




MCB BANK LIMITED - SRl LANKA BRANCH

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A5 AT 31 DECEMBER
(8l amaunts are in S0 Lankan Rupees unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalants
Balances with Central Bank
Placements with banks
Derivative financial instruments
Financial assels recognized at fair value through profit or loss

-measured at fair value

designated at Tair value
Fimancial assats at amortised oost

Loxans and advances

-Debt and other instruments

Financial assets measured at fair value through other compeehensive income
lwestrments in subsidiaries
Imvestments in associates and joint venlures
Progaerly, plant and equipment
Inwestment properties
Right-ol use assets
Intangible assets
Delorred s assels
Current tax ssset
CHher assels
Total assets

LIABILITIES
e to banks
Dervative fimancial instruments
Financial lizbilities recognized at fair value through profit or loss
meiasured al Fair valkue
-designated at fair valus
Financial lmialities ol ameefised cos
-tue bo depositors
due todebt securities bobders
-due to other borrowers
Dbl securitics issued
Hetirement benefit obligations
Curreenl Lag liadailitices
Deferrad tax liabililies
Other provisions
Cher lakilities
Due to subsidiaries
Total liabilities

EQUITY

Assigned capital
Snalutony resende fund
Retained aarmings
Other reserves

Total equity

Total equity and liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Memorandum Information
Number of Employecs

Number of Branches
Node: Arounts stoted are net of impoirment and depreciotion.

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the reguirements of e Central Bank

responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements.

aPearera
= Finonciol Control

The Accounting palicies a
28 February 2025
Colambn
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2024 2023
380,321,620 284,360,614
GHS, A0, 484 1,077,674,807

2625754727 4,160,044 6,900
157,351 -
3,539,010,074  0,546,207,171
11,69%,234,943 12,933,559,995
267,710,772 280 A60,523
134,742,551 145,887,312

71,414,910 31,843,809
170,380,490 208,383,380

80,538,977 124,231,178

15,812,577,914  28,E01 859,608
450,098,630

15,87E,11% 982

16G,713,312,089

1,901,503,290

F,4H5 468
RY,ERD,HTT 79,585,535
BG,077,621 321,312,227
33,376,610 43,342,504
B26,835,679 930,252,A77
17312,679,672  19,089,30E,528
3,950, 500, 167 3,960,508, 151
309,142,309 320,906,797
3,137 18,430 3,770,111,104
1,0413,629,138 1,242,930,106
#,409 898,042 £,812,546,170
25,812,577,914 28,801, 854,658
10,062,140,137  8,134,554,561

Ari Lanka regulations and guidelines. The Mgnagemeant j
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MCB BANK LIMITED - 5RI LANKA BRANCH

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER

[All amounts are in S5ri Lankan Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities

Interest receipts

Interest payments
Net commissian receiplts

Cash payments from other operating activities
Cash payments to employees and suppliers

Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities (Note A)

Increase/ (decrease) in operating assets
Balances with Central Bank of 5ri Lanka

Proceed from maturity of other placements with banks
Firancial assels al amorlised cost

Other short term assets

laans & advances

Imcrease/{decrease) in operating liabilities

Finzncial liabilities at amortised cost - due to depositors
Finzncial Habilities sl amortised cost

ther lizhilities

Met cash generated from operating activities before income tax

Income lax paid

Met cash (used in) / from operating activities

Caszh flows frem investing activities

Proceeds from the sale and maturity of financial investments

Purchase of property, plant and eguipment

Met purchase of inlangible assels

het cash flow from acquisition af investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
MNet cash flow Trom disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joinl venlures
Civicends received from investment in subsidiaries and associates

Proceeds from sale of propertly, plant and equipment

Met cash flows generated from [/ (used in) investing activitics

Cash flow from financing activities

Net proceeds from the issue of ordinary share capital

Ket proceeds from the issue of other equity instruments

Net procesds from the issee of subordinated debt

Repayment of subordinated debt
Interest paid on subordinated dabt

Dividend paid to non-conlrolling interest

Dividend paid to shareholders of the parent company

Dividend paid to holders of other equity instruments

Capital infusion from Head OMce

Prafit repatriations to Head Office

Payments of lease obligations

Decrease of securities sold under repurchase agreement
Met cash generated from f{used in) financing activities

Metlincrease in cash and cash equivalents

Met foreign exchange difference
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Reconciliation of cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

The Accounting policies and notes aon pages 10 through B4 form an integral part of the financial statements,

due Lo debt securities holders
financial liakilities 2t amartised cost - due to other barrowers

Note

14

14

2024

2,639,919,970
(1,147,322,217)
24,261,118
201,221,224
{1,056,160,540)

Page 8

2023

4,195,052, 466
(1,340,820,073)
73,724,255
440,875,058
11,197,638,328)

721,919,555

2,171,193,378

A93 373,373 340,943,207
1,529,212 895 2,173,502, 186
(111,887,789} 667,008,505
34,534,850 (27,307,904}
(820,585,839) 972,933,763
(1,443,514,532)  1,900,000,000
1418,581,827) 1672,622,177)
(16,629,264)  7,525,655,953

{534,513,730)

(605,044,903)

(551,542,994}  §,920,611,050
1,192 865,894 [6,170,497,164)
(13,408,810} (2,072,224)
19,417,425) (20,407,049)
890,647

1,170,042,659  [6,192,085,790)
[A8E 371,782} (GBS, 697 5 76)
(32,765,789} [31,198,269)
(521,137,571} {70:0,895,845)
97,362,084 27,629,415
{1,410,082) (3,829,895
284,369,614 760,570,008
380,321,626 284,369,614
380,321,626 284,369,614
380,321,626 284,369,614

e



MCB BANK LIMITED - SRI LANKA BRANCH

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
(Al amounts are in 5ri Lankan Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Mote
Note A
Reconciliation of operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities
Profit before income Lax expense
Adjustments for ;
Impairment charges/ {reversal) for foans and other losses 10
Amortisation of intangible assets 21
Nepreciation of property, plant, equipment and Right-of-use assels 20
Provision on Head Office expenses
Frofit on sale of property, plant and equipment G
Loss/ (gain) on sale of securities
Provision for employes benefit 71

Amortisation of prepaid employee benetits

Accrual for interest receivable

Accrual for interast payable

Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities

Page 9

2024 2023

720,648,079 1,531,712, 766
{190&7F7,001) 315,203,842
17,946,324 14,763,263
70,930,303 54,986,805
143,000,000 133,000,000

{259,233)

(45,067) (47,025)
15,437,444 16,626,733
6,333,129 1,977,760
4,141,369 55,673,842
(65,994,935) 32,553,619
721,919,555  2,171,193,378
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MCB BANK LIMITED - SRI LANKA BRANCH
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2024
[All armounts are in 51 Lankan Rupees unless otherwise stated)

1 Corporate information

1.1 General
MCB Bank Limited-Sri Lanka Branch {the “Bank”) is a foreign branch of MCB Bank Limited, incorporated in Pakistan
and commenced its business in 1924, The bank was approved to carry out both domestic and off-shore banking

under the Banking Act 30 of 1988 and amendments thereto. The registered office of the bank is located at MNo.g,
Leyden Bastian Road, York Arcade Building, Colombo 01,

1.2 Principal activities

Principal activities of the Bank continued to be banking and related activities such as accepting deposits, granting
lcans and advances, corporate and retail banking, off shore banking, foreign currency operations, trade services, etc.

There have been no significant changes to these principal activities during the financial year.

1.3 Date of authorisation of issue

Ihe Financial Statements of MCB Bank Limited-5r Lanka Branch for the year ended 31 December 2024 were
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the management on 28 February 2025,

2 Basis of preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance

The Financial Statements of the Bank which comprise the Income Statement, Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Motes thereto have
been prepared in accardance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (LKASs and 5LFRSs) laid down by the |nstitute of
Chartered Accountants of 5ri Lanka and Banking Act No.30 of 1988 and subsequent amendments thereto.

2.2 Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared an the historical cost basis and applied consistently, with no
adjustments being made for inflationary factors affecting the Financial Statements, except for the following:

- Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value;

- Financial assets classified as FVOC! are measured at fair value;

- Frechold land and huildings (Condominium) are measured at cost at the time of acguisition and
subsequently at revalued amounts which are the fair values at the date of revaluation;

- Measurement of defined benefit oblipations based on key actuarial assumplions.

2.3 Comparative information

The comparative infarmation is re-classified wherever necessary to conform with the current year’s classification in
order ta pravide a better presentation,

2.4 Functional and presentation currency

Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the Bank's functional currency for Domestic
Banking Unit and United State Dollars as its functional currency for Fareign Currency Banking Unit books, All
amounts have been rounded to the nearest Rupee, except when otherwise indicated.

2.5 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expense. Actual amount may defer from these estimates.
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MCB BANK LIMITED - SRI LANKA BRANCH
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2024 (CONTD)

2 Basis of preparation (contd)

2.5 Use of estimates and judgments (contd)
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period inwhich the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting palicies
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the Financial Statements are described in the
relevant notes as follows:

- Mote 4.3 - Recognition, classification and measurement of financial instruments ;

- Mote 4.3.9 - Impairment of financial instruments: key assumptions used in estimating recoverable cash
- Mote 4.3.9 - Selection and approval of models used to measure ECL;

- Mote 4.3.9 - Identification, measurement and assessment of impairment of financial instruments;

. Mote 4,11 - Impairment of non-financial assets ;

- Mote 27 - Employee retirement benefits; and

- Mote 26 - Deferred taxation.

An analysis of financial instruments measured at fair value as at the end of the reporting period, by the level of the
fair value hierarchy is given in Note 34.b.

2.6 Materiality and aggregation
cach material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements, ltems of dissimilar nature or
function are presented separately unless they are immaterial.

3 Material accounting policies

3.1 Foreign Currency - Foreign currency transactions
Ihe Bank uses Sri Lankan Rupees as their functional currency for Domestic Banking Unit and United State Dollars as
its functional currency far Fareign Currency Banking Unit books. All exchange differences resulting from translation

of functional currency balances to presentation currency are recognised in the equity through other comprehensive
IimcCome.

fransactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currency of the Bank at the spot
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions,

Manetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into the
functional currency at the spot exchange rate at that date.

Mon-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated inlo the
functional currency at the spat exchange rate at the date on which the fair value is determined. Mon-monetary
items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the spot exchange rate at
the date of the transaction. Forward foreign exchange contracts and currency swaps are valued at the forward
market rate ruling on the date of the Statement of financial position,

3.2 Recognition of Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability {or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of the
financial asset or liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates future cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses,




Page 12

MCB BANK LIMITED - SRl LANKA BRANCH
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2024 (CONTD)

3 Material accounting policies {contd)

3.2 Recognition of Interest income and expense (contd)

[he calculation of the effective interest rate includes all transaction costs and fees and points paid or received that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition ar issue of a financial asset or liability,

Interest income and expense presented in profit or loss include;

- interest on financial assets and linancial liabilities measured at amortised cost calculated on an effective
interest basis;

- interest income on FVOC! investment securities calculated on an effective intorest hasis.

33 Fees and commission income and expense

Fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on financial asset or liability
are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate

Other fees and commission income, including account servicing fees, Trade fees are recognized as the related
services are performed. When a loan commitment is notl expected to resull in the draw-down of a loan, the related
loan commitment fees are recognized on a straight-ling basis over the commitment period. Other fees and
commission expense relate mainly to transaction and service fees, which are expensed as the services are received.

3.4 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on an accreal basis when the Bank's right to receive the dividend is
established. 1his is usually on the ex-dividend date for quoted equity securitics,

3.5 Lease income

The excess of aggregate lease rentals receivable over the cost of the leased assets constitutes the total unearned
lzase income at the commencement of a lease. The unearned lease income is taken into income over the term of
the lease commencing with the month in which the leases executed in proportion to the declining receivable
balance {i.e. in a manner that reflects a constant periodic rate of return on capital outstanding).

i6 Taxation expense

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax, Current tax and deferred tax arc recognized in profit or loss except
to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

3.6.1  Current taxation
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss far the year, using tax rates

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
yEars.

Provision for taxation is based on the profit for the year adjusted for taxation purposes in accordance with the
provisions of the Inland Revenue Act No. 24 of 2017 and the amendments thereto at the rates specified in Note 13,

3162 Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recagnised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used, Deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realized.
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3 Significant accounting policies {contd)

3.6 Taxation expense {contd)
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they
reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
against current tax assets, and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax autharity on the same taxable entity, or
on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets
and liabilities will be realized simultaneoushy.

4 Assets and liabilities and basis of measurement

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, unrestricted balances held with central banks and highly
liquid financial assets with original maturities of three manths or less from the date of acquisition that are subject to

an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Bank in the management of its short-term
commitments.

4.2 Statutory deposit with Central Banks

The Monctary Law Act reguires that all Commercial Banks operating in 5ri Lanka maintain reserves against all
deposit liabilities denominated in Sri Lankan Rupees. The details of reserve requirements are given in Nole 15 Lo the
financial statoments. These reserves are measurad in the financial statemeants at amortized cost,

4.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities

4.3.1 Initial recognition and measurement
The Bank initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities on the
date at which they are originated. All other financial assets and liabilities (including assets and liabilities designated

at fair value through profit or loss) are initially recognized on the trade date at which the Bank becomes a party Lo
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

4.3.2 Classification

4.3.2.1 Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at Amortised cost, Fair Value through Other

Comprehensive Income (FWVOCH) or Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). A financial asset is measured at
amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated at FYTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
2 the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A odebt instrument is measdred at FVOC anly if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FUTPRL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting;

- contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest i Hal;1mount
outstanding. %
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4 Assets and liabilities and basis of measurement {contd)

4.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities {contd)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Bank may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value in OCL, This election is made an an investment-by-investment basis.

All other financial assets are classified and measured at FVTPL.

In addition, on initial recognition, the Bank may irrevacably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
reguirements Lo be measured 3l amorlised cost or at FVOC! as at EVIPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Business model assessment
The Bank makes an assessment of the abjective of a business model in which an asset is held at a portiolio level

because this best reflects the way the business is manapged and information is provided to management. The
information considered includes,

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In
particular, whether management's stratepy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining 3
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liahilities
Lhat are Tunding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Bank’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business maodel {and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;
how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based an the [air value of
the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations
about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as
part of an overall assessment of how the Bank's stated objective for managing the financial assels is
achieved and how cash flows are realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are
measured at FVIPL because they are neither held to colloct contractual cash flows nor held both to collect
contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest [(SPP1)

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset an initial recognitian.
“Interest” is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the
principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (2.
liguidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Bank considers the
contractual terms of the instrument, This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term
that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In
making the assessment, the Bank considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;

. prepayment and extension terms;

. terms that limit the Bank’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse asset

arrangements); and

. terms that limit the Bank’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse asset
arrangements); and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money - &.g. periodical reset of int
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4 Assets and liabilities and basis of measurement {contd)
4.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities [contd)
4.3.2 Financial assets [contd)

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) (contd)

4.3.2.2 Financial liabilities

Ihe Bank initially recognises all financial liabilities an the date that they are originated and classifies its financial
liabilitics as measured at amaortised cost or fair value through profit or loss.

4.3.2.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
M financial asset or a financial liability is classified as fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held for
trading or is designated as such upon initial recognition.

lhe Bank has not designated any financial asset/liability upon initial recognition at fair through profit or loss as at
the reporting date.

4.3.3 Amortised cost measurement

The amortised cost of a financial asset ar liability is the amount at which Lhe financial asset or liability is measured at
initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective
interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognized and the maturity amount, minus any
reduction for impairment,

4.3.4 Fair value measurement
S5LFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

A Fair value measurement requires an entity to determine all the following:

1. the particular asset or liability that is the subject of the measurement:

2. for a nan-financial asset, the valuation premise that is appropriate for the measurement {consistently with
its highest and best use);

3. the principal {or most advantageous) market for the asset ar liability; and

the valuation technigue(s) appropriate for the measurement, considering the availability of data with
which to develop inputs that represent the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liahility and the level of the fair value hierarchy within which the inputs are cateporized.

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement. For some assets and liabilities,
observable market transactions or market information might be available. For other assets and liabilities, observable
market transactions and market information might not be available. However, the objective of a fair value
measurement in both cases is the same to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset or to
transfer the liability would take place between market participants at the measurement date under current market
conditions {i.e. an exit price at the measurement date from the perspective of 2 market participant that holds the
asset or owes the liability),

When a price for an identical asset or liability is not observable, an entity measures fair value using another
valuation technigue that maximizes the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizes the use of unchservable
inputs. Because fair value is a market-based measurement, it is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liahility, including assumptions about risk, As a re&ult an entity’s
intention to hold an asset or to settle or otherwise fulfill a liability is not relevant when measuri
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4 Assets and liabilities and basis of measurement (contd)
4.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities (contd)

4.3.4 Fair value measurement {contd)
When an asset is acquired or a liability is assumed in an exchange transaction for that asset or liability, the
transaction price is the price paid to acquire the asset or received to assume the liability (an entry price). In contrast,

the fair value of the asset or liability is the price that would be received to sell the asset or paid Lo transfer the
liability [an exit price).

4.3.5 Determining fair values

The determination of fair value for financial assets and liabilities for which there is no observable market price

reguires the use of valuation technigues. For financial instruments that trade infrequently and have little price

transparency, fair value is less objective, and requires varying degrees of judgment depending on liguidity,

concentration, uncertainty of market factors, pricing assumption and other risks affecting the specific instrument.

L}

- Level 1 - Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusied) in active markets for identical assels or
liahilities;

- Level 2 Fair value measurements using inputs ather than guoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e.as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices); and

- Level 3 - Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (i.e. unobservable inputs),

4.3.6 Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subseguent to their initizl recognition, except in the period after the Bank
changes its business model for managing financial assets,

Mo reclassifications during Lhe year.
4.3.7 Derecognition

Financial assets

The Bank derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expira,
or it transfers the rights to receive the cantractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Bank neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain contral of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset {or the carrying
amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognized) and the surmn of.

- the consideration received (including any new asset abtained less any new liability assumed) and

- any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. any interest in transferred financial assets that gualify for derecognition that is created or retained
by the Bank is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

[he Bank enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised an its statement of financial position, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. In such
cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised, Examples of such transactions are securities lending and sale and
repurchase transactions.

When assets are sold to a third party with a concurrent total rate of return swap on the tran*;fcrred assets, the
transaction is accounted for as a secured financing transaction similar to sale and rrpufrhasﬂ g ; .hecause
the Bank retains all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of such assets.
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a4 Assets and liabilities and basis of measurement (contd)
4.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities {contd)

4.3.7 Derecognition (cont.)
In transactions in which the Bank neither retains nor transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of a financial asset and it retains control over the assel, the Bank continues to recognise the asset Lo the extent of its

continuing invalvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred
asset.

In certain transactions, the Bank rotains the obligation to service the transferred financial asset for a fee, The
transferred asset is derecognised if it meets the derecognition criteria, An asset or liability is recognised for the

servicing contract if the servicing fee is more than adeguate (asset) or is less than adeguate (liability) for performing
the servicing.

Financial liahilities

Ihe Bank derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified such an cxchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liahility. The difference between the carrying
value of the original financial liakility and the consideration paid, including any non cash asscts transfeorred or
liabilities assumed is recognised in profit ar loss.

4.3.8 Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Bank currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

4.3.9 Identification, measurement and assessment of impairment of financial assets

The Bank applies a three-stage approach to measuring Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) for the following categories of
financial assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss:

Debt instruments
Instruments measurced at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income;

Financing and Receivables commitments; and Financial Guarantee Contracts ECL is not recognised on egquity

Financial Assets migrate through the following three stages based on the change in credit risk since initial
recognition:

Stage 1: 12-months ECL

For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are not

credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the ifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events
occurring within the next 12 months is recognised.

Bank determines 12 maonth ECL from customers who are not significantly credit deteriorated (i.e. less than 30 days
past due).

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired
For exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit
impaired, a lifetime ECL {i.2. reflecting the remaining lifetime of the Financial Asset) is recognised.
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a4 Assets and liabilities and basis of measurement {contd)
4.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities {contd)

4.3.9  Identification, measurement and assessment of impairment of financial assets {contd)

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL— Credit Impaired

Exposures are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred. For exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime
ECL is recognised and Financing Income is calculated by applying the Fffective Rate to the amortised cost {net of
pravision) rather than the gross carrying amount.

Determining the S5tage for Impairment

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life between the reporting date
and the date of initial recognition. The Bank considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and

available without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative information and
also, forward-looking analysis.

An exposure will migrate through the ECL stages as asset quality deteriorates. If, in a subsequent period, asset
quality improves and also reverses any previously assessed significant increase in credit risk since origination, then
the provision far impairment loss reverts from lifetime ECL to 12 -months CCL, Exposures thal have not deteriorated
significantly since arigination, or where the deterioration remains within the Bank's inveslment grade criteria, or
which are less than 30 days past due, are considered to have a low credit risk. The provision for impairment loss for
these financial assets is based on a 12-months ECL. When an asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the
related provision, Such assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the

amount of the loss has been determined. subscquent recoveries of amounts previously written off reduce the
amount of the expense in the Income statement.

The Bank assesses whether the credit risk on an cxposure has increased significantly on an individual or collective
basis. For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, Financial Instruments are grouped on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics, taking into account instrument type, credit risk ratings, date of initial recognition,
remaining term to maturity, industry, geographical location of the borrower and ather relevant factors.

Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are derived from unbiased and probability-weighted estimates of expected loss, and are measured as follows:

Financial Assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash shortfalls over the
expected life of the Financial Asset discounted by the effective rate. The cash shortfall is the difference between the
cash flows due to the Bank in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive,

Financial Assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross carrying amaunt
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted by the effective rate,

Undrawn commitments: as the present value of the difference hetween the contractual cash flows that are due to
the Bank if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive.

Financial Guarantee Contracts: as the expected payments to reimburse the halder less any amounts that the Bank
expacts to recover,
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4 Assets and liabilities and basis of measurement (contd)
4.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities {[contd)

4.3.9 Identification, measurement and assessment of impairment of financial assets (contd)

For further details on how the Bank calculates ECLs including the use of forward looking infarmation, refer to the
Credit quality of Financial Assets section in Note 34, For details on the effect of modifications of Financing and
Receivables on the measurement of ECL refer to note on Provision for expected credit loss,

ECLs are recognised using a provision for impairment loss account in income stalement. The Bank recognises the
provision charge in statement of profit or loss, with the corresponding amount recognised in other comprehensive
income, with no reduction in the carrying amount of the asset in the statement of financial pasition

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows

PD The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over 3 given time horizon. A default

may only happen at a certain time over the assesscd period, if the facility has not been previously
derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

EAD: |he Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of capital and financing
income, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected draw downs on committed facilities, and
accrued financing income fram missed payments.

LGD :  The loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It
is based an the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the Bank would expect
to receive, including the realisation of any collateral.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets;

- Loan commitments and financial puarantee contracts: generally, as a provision;

- Debt instruments measured at FVOC): no loss allowance is recognised in the statement of financial position
because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value, However, the loss allowance is disclosed and
is recognised in the fair value reserve,

4.4 Rescheduled loans

Loans whase original terms have been modified including those subject Lo forbearance strategies are considered
rescheduled loans. If the renegotiations are on terms that are not consistent with those readily available on the
market, this provides objective evidence of impairment. Once terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is
measured using the original effective interest rate as calculated before the modification of terms and the lpan/
advance is no longer considered past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans and advances to
ensure that all criteria are met and the future payments are likely to oceur.

4.5 Collateral Valuation

The Bank seeks to use collateral, where possible, to mitigate its risks on financial assets, The collateral comes in
various farms such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantess, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-
financial assets and credit enhancements such as netting arrangements. The fair value of collateral is assessed at
inception and as per the Regulatory requirements,

Mon-financial collateral such as real estate is valued by an external, independent wvaluation company, having
appropriate recognised professional gualifications and recent experience in the location and fatepdieat ert
F-".I-" P E P q p @'ﬁﬂ!‘iﬁt nmﬁﬂE ¥
being valued, AR
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4 Assets and liabilities and basis of measurement {contd)

a4.6 Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their value in response to changes in interest rates, financial
instrument prices, commodity prices, foreign exchange rates, credit risk and indices. Derivatives are categorized as
trading unless they are designated as hedging instruments. Bank uses derwatives such as forward exchange
contracts and swaps. Bank has not designated any derivatives as hedging instruments and has not followed hedge
accounting as at the reporting date,

All derivatives are initially recognised and subsequently measured at fair value, with all revaluation gains or losses
recognised in profit and loss. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liahilities when
fair value is negative. Fair value is determined using the forward market rates ruling on the reparting date.

4.7 Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (repos) remain on the Statement of Financial Position; the
counterparty liability is included under borrowings. Securities purchased under agreements to resell {reverse repos)
are recorded as loans and advances to other banks or customers, as appropriate,

The bank shall abtain a minimum haircut on top of principle plus interest of the security as specified below in
accordance with CB5L puidelines No .01 of 2019,

Remaining term to maturity of the eligible security Minimum haircat (%)
Up to 1 year 4
Mare than 1 year up to 3 years 5
taore than 3 yoars up to 5 years &
mMore than 5 years up to 8 years 10
More than B yoars 12
4.8 Finance leases

Assets leased to customers which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards associated with awnership other
than legal title, are classified as finance leases. Leasing balances are stated in the Statement of financial position
after deduction of unearned lease income and the impairment for rentals doublful of recovery. Amounts receivable
under finance leases are classified as lease receivablos and presented within loans and roceivables to other
customers in the Statement of financial position,

4.9 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or

services, for rental Lo others or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used during more than one
period.

4.9.1  Basis of recognition

Property, plant and equipment are recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
assets will flow to the Bank and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

4.9.2 Measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured at its cost,
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and cost incurred subsequentiy
to add to, replace part of, or service it. The cost of self constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct
labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use and the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, Purchased software
that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of computer equipment,

When parts of an item of property or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
iterns (major components) of property, plant and equipment. =
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4 Assets and liabilities and basis of measurement (contd)
4.9 Property, Plant and Equipment {contd)

4.9.3 Cost model

The Bank applies cost model to property, plant and eguipment except for freehold land and buildings and records at

cost of purchase or construction together with any incidental expenses thereon less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

4.9.4  Revaluation model

The Bank applies the revaluation model to the entire class of freehold land and buildings. Such properties are
carried at a revalued amount, being their fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land and buildings of the Bank are revalued
every three years on a roll over basis to ensure that the carrying amounts do not differ materially from the fair
values at the reporting date. On revaluation of an asset, any increase in the carrying amount is recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity, under capital reserve or used Lo reverse a previous revaluation
decrease relating to the same asset, which was charged to profit or loss. In this circumstance, the increase is
recognised as income to the extent of the previous write down. Any decrease in the carrying amount is recognised
as an expense in the Income Statement or debited in the Other Comprehensive Income to the extent of any credit
balance oxisting in the capital reserve in respect of that asset. The decrease recagnised in Othor Comprohensive
Income reduces the amount accumulated in equity under capital reserves. Any balance remaining in the revaluation

reserve in respect of an asset is transferred directly to Retzined Earnings on retiremaont or disposal of the asset.al of
the asset,

4.9.5 Subsequent costs

The subseguent cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the iterm if it is probable that the future economic benofits embodied within that part will flow to
the Bank and its cost can be reliably measured. The costs of day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment

are charped o profit or loss as incurred. Costs incurred in using or redeploying an item is not included under
carrying amount of an item.

4.9.6 Derecognition

The carrying amount of an itern of property, plant and equipment is derccognised on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition of an item
of property, plant and equipment which is calculated as the difference between the carrying amount and the net
disposal proceeds is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised,

4.9.7 Depreciation

The Bank provides depreciation from the month the assets are available for use while no depreciation is charged in
the month in which the assets are disposed-off al the following rates on a straight line basis over the periods
appropriate to the estimated useful lives based on the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits are
expected to be consumed by the Bank. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is
classified as held for sale or the date that the asset is derecognised. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter

of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Bank will abtain ownership by the end
of the lease term.

The estimated useful lives are as fallows:
Straight-Line Basis

Frechold building - 40 years at 2.5% per annum

Leasehold praperties - 3 years at 33.33% per annum

Carmputer hardware - 4 years at 25% per annum

Office equipment - 10 years at 10% per annum

Furniture and fittings - 10 years at 10% per annum

WMotor vehicles - 20% per annum {subject to 20% residual value)

ploathd =



Page 22

MCB BANK LIMITED - SRI LANKA BRANCH
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2024 (CONTD)

4 Assets and liabilities and basis of measurement {contd)

4.10 Intangible asset

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-manetary asset without physical substance held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, far rental to others or for administrative purpases,

4.10.1 Basis of recognition

Anintangible asset is recognised if itis probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset
will flow to the entity and the cost of the assets can be measurcd reliably, An intangible asset is initially measured at
cost, The cost of intangible assets acguired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.

The Bank's intangible assets include the value of computer software.

Software

All computer software costs incurred, licensed for use by the Bank, which are not integrally related to associated
hardware, which can be clearly identified, reliably measured and it's probable that they will lead to fulure economic
benefits, are included in the Statement of Financial Position under the category Intangible Assets and carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accurmulated impairment losses.

4.10.2  Subseguent expenditure

Expenditure incurred on software is capitalised only when it is probable that this expenditure will enable the asset
to generale fulure economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standard of performance and this
expenditure can be measured and attributed to the asset reliably. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

4.10.3 Amortisation
Intangible assets are amaortised on a straight line basis in profit or loss from the date when the asset is available for

use, over the best estimate of its useful cconomic life based an a pattern in which the asset’s cconomic benefits are
consumed by the Bank. The estimated useful life of software is three (3) years.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

4.11 Impairment of non—financial assets

At each reporting date, the Bank reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than deferred tax
assets) to determing whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that is largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. Goodwill arising from a

business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expecled to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

[he ‘recoverable amount” of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
“Walue in use’ is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU,

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any

goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata
basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determmed
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised,
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i Assets and liabilities and basis of measurement {contd)

4,12 Right-of-Use assets
AL the inception of a contract, the Company evaluates whether it constitutes or includes a lease. & contract is

considered a lease if it grants the right to control the use of an identified assel for a specified periad in oxchange for
consideration. This assessment is based on the lease definition under SLFRS 16,

Upon lease commencement, the Campany recognizes both a right-of-use asset and a carrespanding lease liability,
The initial measurement of the right-of-use asset is based on cost, which includes:

- The initial lease liability amount, adjusted lor any lease payments made at or before the commencement dal
- Any directly attributable initial costs,

- An estimate of costs to dismantle, remove, or restore the underlying asset or site,

= Less any lease incentives recoived.

lhe right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated on a straight-line basis from the commencement date until the
end of the lease term, unless ownership transfers to the Company al the end of the lease term ar the asset's cost
reflects an intention to exercise a purchase option. In such cases, depreciation is based on the useful life of the
underlying asset, aligned with property and eguipment policies. Additionally, the right-of-use asset is subject to
impairment reviews and adjusted for specific remeasurements of the lease liability when necessary,

Ihe lease liability is initially measured at the present value of unpaid lease payments, discounted using either the
interest rate implicit in the leasc or, if not readily determinable, the Company's incremental borrowing
rate—typically used as the discount rate. The lease liability measurement includes:

- Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments,

- Variable lease payments linked to an index or rate, initially measured at the commencement date,
E Expected amounts payable under residual value guarantess,

- Furchase option prices if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise them,

- Lease payments in renewal periods if the Company is reasonably certain to extend the lease, and

- Penalties for early termination, unless early termination is unlikely,

Subseguently, the lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest methad. It is remeasurec
when:

- Future lease payments change due to variations in an index or rate;

- The estimated residual value puarantee payable is adjusted:

- Ihe Company revises its assessment of exercising purchase, extension, or termination options; or

- There is a change in in-substance fixed lease payments.

When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the right-of use asset, If the right-of-
use asset has been fully reduced, the adjustment is recorded in profit or loss.

4.12.1 Short-Term leases and low-value asset leases
I'he Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases and leases of

low-value assets, such as IT equipment. Instead, lease payments for these agreements are recognized as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

4.12.2 Presentation

In accordance with SLFRS 16, right-of-use assets are either presented separately on the Statement of Financial
Position or disclosed in the Notes. Lease liabilities follow a similar treatment. The Company has opted to prosent
right-of-use assets separately, while lease liabilities are disclosed under Note 20.a{l1),

Depreciation and interest expenses are presented separately in the Income Statement. In the Cash Flow Statement,
principal repayments on lease liabilities are classified under financing activities, while intwsz are
recorded under operating activities, H“ﬂfh
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4 Assets and liabilities and basis of measurement {contd)
4.13 Employee benefits

4.13.1 Defined benefit pension plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The liability
recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of the defined benefit plan is the present value of
defined benefit obligation as at the reporting date. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by

independent actuaries using Projected Unit Credit Method (PUC) as recommended by LKAS 19 - “Employess
Benefits”.

The assumptions based on which the results of the valuation were determined are included in note 27 to the
financial statements.

The liability is not externally funded.

The Bank recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined bencfit plan in Other Comprehensive Income
and expenses related to defined benefit plans in staff expenses in profit or loss,

Provision has been made for retirement gratuities from the first year of service for all employees in conformity with
the LKAS 19, However, under the payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the liability to an employoo arises only on

completion of 5 years of continued service. Retirement age of the employees shall be considered as per the Act No.
28 of 2021.

4.13.2 Defined contribution plan

4.13.2.1 Employees’ Provident Fund

All employees of the Bank are members of the MCB Bank Limited SriLanka Branch Staff Pravident Fund to which the
Bank and employees contribules 12% and 8% of such employees’ basic salary and allowances respectively,

4.13.2.2 Employees’ Trust Fund
The Bank cantributes 3% of the salary of each employee to the Employees’ Trust Fund.

a4.14 Deposits from Customers

Deposits from customers include non-interest bearing deposits, saving deposits, term depasits, and deposits payable
at call and certificate of deposits. They are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at amounts payable. Interest
paid/payable on these deposits is charged to profit or lass,

4.15 Borrowings
Barrowings include refinance borrowings, call money barrowings, and borrowings from financial institutions and are

shown at the gross value of the outstanding balance. Interest paid/payable on these deposits is charged to profit or
loss,

4.16 Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. The amount recognised is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present abligation
at the reporting date, taking in to account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation at that date. Where

a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is
determined based on the present value of those cash flows.
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4 Assets and liabilities and basis of measurement (contd)

4.17 Capital commitments and contingencies

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by occurrence or non-
occurrence uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Bank or present obligations where the
transfer of economic benefit is not probable or cannat be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are not accounted
in the Statement of Financial Position but are disclosed unlass they are remote.

‘Financial guarantees’ are contracts that require the Bank to make specificd payments to reimburse the holder for a
Inss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it is due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument.

4,18 Cash flow statement

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using the "Direct Method” of preparing Cash Flows in accordance with
the 5ri Lanka Accounting Standard 07- Statement of cash flows.

4.19 Regulatory provisions

Deposit insurance scheme
In terms of the Banking Act Direction No 2 of 2021"Insurance of Deposit Liabilities” issued on 28th August 2071 and
subsequent amendments there to all Licensed Commercial Banks are required to insure their deposit liabilities in the
Deposit Insurance Scheme operated by the Monetary Board in terms of Sri Lanka Deposit Insurance Scheme
Repulations. Deposits to be insured include demand, time and savings deposit liabilities inclusive of interest accrued
and exclude the following;

- Deposit liabilities to member institutions.

- Deposit liabilities maintained individually or jointly with any other parly, by Directors, Key Management
Personnel, other related parties, excluding sharehalders as defined in Banking Act Direction, No, 11 of 2007
on Corporate Governance for Licensed Commercial Banks.

- Deposit liabilities maintained efther individually or jointly with any other party, by former Directors or Key
Management Personnel of the respective Member Institution,

- Deposits falling within the meaning of abandoned property in terms of the Banking Act, amaunts of which
have been transferred to the Central Bank of Sri Lanka in terms of the relevant Dircctions issued by the
Monetary Board.

- Vostro accounts of entities in the member institution’s group entity,

- Deposit liabilities at overseas branches,

= Promissory notes.

In the case of foreign currency deposit liabilities, the daily indicative exchange rates issued by the International
Operations Department of the Central Bank of 5ri Lanka, shall be used to convert the foreign currency liabilities into
local currency.

Licensed Commercial Banks are required to pay a premium of 0,10% on eligible deposit liabilities if the Bank
maintains a capital adequacy ratio of 14% or above as at the end of the immediately preceding financial vear and a
premium of 0,123% on eligible deposit liabilities for all other Licensed Commercial Banks calculated on the total
amount of eligible deposits as at the end of the quarter within a period of 15 days from the end of the quarter.

Crop insurance levy

In terms of the Finance Act No. 12 of 2013 all institutions under the purview of Banking Act No. 30 of 1988, Finance
Business Act No. 42 of 2011 and Regulation of insurance Industry Act No. 43 of 2000 are required to pay 1% of the
profit after tax as Crop Insurance Levy to the National Insurance Trust Fund effective from 1st April 2013
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4 Assets and liabilities and basis of measurement (contd)

4.20 Other taxes

Value Added Tax on Financial Services (VAT on F5)

VAT on financial services 15 calculated in accordance with Value Added Tax (VAT), Act No 14 of 2002 and subsequent
amendments thereto, the base for the computation of value added tax on financial services is the accounting profit
before VAT and income tax adjusted for the economic depreciation and emaluments payable to employees
including cash benefits non-cash benefits & provisions relating Lo terminal benefils.

Social Security Contribution Lewy (S5CL)

Social Security Cantribution Lewy shall be paid by any person carrying on the business of supplying financial services,
on the liable turnover specified in the Second Schedule or the Social Security Contribution Levy Act No 25 of 2022, at
the rate of 2.5% with effect from 1st October 2022, 55CL is payable on 100% of the value addition attributable to
financial services The value addition attributable to financial services shall be computed for the payment of 55CL on

the business of supplying financial services by applying the attributable method referred to in Chapter 1A of the
Value Added Tax Act No. 14 of 2002,

5 Financial risk management

5.1 Introduction and overview
The Bank has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:

Credit Risk
Market Risk
Liguidity Hisk
Operational Risk

5.2 Risk Management Framework

lhe Bank executes its risk strategy and undertakes controlled risk-taking activitics in line with the Global Risk
Management Policy and its Risk Management Framewaork. This framewaork combines core policies, procedures and
process design with broad oversight and is supported by risk monitoring across the Bank. This framewark is based
on prudent risk identification, measurement, management and monitoring process which are closely aligned with
the activities of the Bank so as to ensure that risks are kept within the acceptable level.

[he Bank, at local level has its Risk Management structure in place to monitor the Bank wide risks. For this purpose,
the Bank has constituted the following Committees:

- Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO) which monitors the Asset Liability Strocture and
management of market risk of the Bank;
Credit Committee {CC) which monitors the credit risk of the Bank; and

- Integrated Risk Management Committee (IRMC) which monitors the overall risk composition of the Bank.

lhese committees are established to assist the Board of Directors, its relevant committees and Senior Management
at Head Office, i.e. Head Office ALCO, Risk Management and Portfolio Review Committee (BM and PRC),
Management Committee (MC), Management Committee of Risk who are responsible to ensure the formulation and
implementation of a comprehensive risk management framework.

The risk management function in 5r Lanka is headed by a designated Chief Risk Officer Sri Lanka (CRO) reporting
functionally to the Group Head Risk Management Group, who in turn reports to Risk Management and Portfolio
Review Committee of the Board, and CRO administratively reports to the Country General Manager, The role of the
CRO is both as a strategic partner to the business units advising them on risk issues and nnrmwhm identify

and manage these risks. ““E‘"‘“ﬁqh
= A
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5 Financial risk management {contd)
5.2 Risk Management Framework (contd)

The CRO performs following critical functions:

A Integrated risk management

= Credit risk management

- tarket and Liquidity risk management
- Operational risk management

The financial year 2024 was another challenging year for financial services industry,, MCB focused on controlling
variables to create value for stakeholders through economic cycles, The bank recognized the need to recalibrate
growth aspirations and preserve portfolio quality to avoid volatility, Despite moderately adverse conditions, MUB
maintained support for its customers and responded to the banking sector's role in reviving the economy by
strengthening risk management capabilities,

The bank took tactical steps to ensure stability, including preserving asset guality, optimizing costs, and maintzining
profitability. It established a Portfolio Manasgement Unit to support customers, minimize credit deterioration, and
recover from moratorium cases during the pandemic. The bank also repurposed its portfolio to more efficient
lending and enhanced fee-based income, focusing on the export sector.

MCB proactively managed impairments, increasing charges to address credit risks and ensure capital adequacy,
which stood at 62.04% against regularity throshald of 12.5%. It also managed foreign currency and Rupee liquidity
effectively, maintaining a Statutory Liguid Asset Ratio of 95%.

While macrocconomic prossures persist, MCB plans to focus on maintaining financial stability and capital-efficient
lending. The bank is aptimistic about long-term prospects, believing that successful IMF negotiations, debt
restructuring, and reforms will lead to economic recovery further.

Stress testing

The Bank conduct regular stress tests as presmptive measure to effectively eliminate excessive losses due to
unanticipated or overly volatile market conditions. In this regards, a complete stress test is undertaken for all major
risk categories identiflied during the annual ICAAP review. In addition, quarterly stress tests are also conducted for
accrual and price risks and daily stress tests are conducted for liquidity risk. The annual ICAAP begins with a
probable severe macroeconomic stress scenario forecasting, impacts on the Sr Lanka's credit portfolio in full. The
finalized ICAAP is filed with the CBSL within five manths from the close of the financial year.

In addition to conducting stress tosts, the Bank adopts a risk-based approach to effectively mitigate and manage the
risks associated with its portfolio. Furthermaore, internal risk ratings are reviewed on an annual basis, and customers
may be subject to downgrades or reclassification based on their updated ratings while would be done based on CBSL
guidelines.

Risk mitigation

The Bank obtains various types of collateral and establishes maximum prudential limits as part of its overall risk
management/mitigation. Details such as nature of the collateral that could be accepted required security margin,
realizable value of the collateral, ete are clearly defined in the Credit Policy of the Bank and any deviations require
specific approval from the Management. However, respective approving authorities would take into account the
availability of securities only as the secondary source of payment. The Bank's product offering includes a variety of
corporate and SME facilities, in which the Bank has the right to cancel and/or reduce the facilities within a short
period of time. Also very strict guidelines were issued on accommodating excesses, one-offs, allowing temperately
accommaodations deteriorating existing security margins etc, The Bank does not limit its exposure to credit losses to
the contractual notice period, but, instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the Bank's expectations of the
customer behavior, its likelihood of default and the Bank's future risk mitigation procedures, which could include
reduction or cancellation of the facilities, abtaining additional collateral ete. e Partng .
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5 Financial risk management (contd)

5.3 Credit risk

Credit risk arises from dealing with individuals, corporate borrowers, financial institutions, sovereigns etc. The Bank
is expased to credit risk through its lending and investment activities. It also stems from both on and off- balance
sheet activities, Credit risk makes up the largest part of the Bank's exposure. The Purpose of the credit risk function
is to identify measure, manage, monitor and mitigate credit risk. Organizational structure of this function ensures

pre and post-facto management of credit risk. There is a clear segregation of duties between transaction ariginators,
cradit administration and the risk function.

The credit risk management framework of the Bank encompasses the following;

- Reviewing the credit policies and procedures in line with the risk management policy and international best
practices;

- Use of comprehensive credit appraisal process structured towards analyzing pertinent information al
macro and micro levels;

= Delegated approval/ review authaority assipned to officers/ executives with the necessary experience,
judgment and integrity to properly evaluate the risks and rewards involved in the credit transactions;

2 A hindsight review process to ensure the checks and balances has been instituted to ensure consistent
application of the Bank’s credit policies;

= Monitoring of credits with deteriorating credit ratings and inclusion of those advances on a watch-list that
is regularly reviewed by Senior Management;
Portfolio management unit foredit administration unit to support the extension snd monitoring of credit by
the business units;

- Segregation of duties by independent units to carryout Credit approval, Risk Management, Credit
administration, Credit review functions;

- Measurement and monitoring of credit risk at the counterparty level by using internal risk rating maodels;

- Development and adaptation of risk measurement technigques/models Lo suit the regulatory and industry
requirements,

Centralized Credit Administration unit to manage problematic credits and Non-Performing facilitios. This unit is
responsible far all aspects of an overdue facility, follow up of rescheduled facilities, monitoring the value of the

applicable collateral and liquidation, scrutiny of legal documents and liaising with the customer until all recovery
matters are finalized.

5.4 Impairment assessment

For accounting purposes, the Bank uses an expected credit loss model for the recognition of losses on impaired
financial assets. The Bank applies three-stage approach in measuring expected credit losses (ECL) on Loans and
receivables and other financial assets measured at amortized cost. Assets migrate through the following three stages
based on the change in credit quality since initial recognition.

Stage 1. 12 months ECL for exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events occurring within next 12
manths is recagnized.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired for credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition but that are not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL s recognized.

Stage 3. Lifetime ECL — credit impaired Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have ocourred.
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5 Financial risk management {(contd)
5.4 Impairment assessment (contd)

In some circumstances Bank does not have reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort to measure lifetime expected credit losses on an individual instrument basis. In that case, life time
expected credit losses shall be recognized on a collective basis that considers comprehensive credit risk information,
This comprehensive credit risk information must incorperate not only past due information but also all relevant
credit information, including forward-looking macroeconomic information, in order to approximate the result of

recognizing lifetime expected credit losses when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition an an individual instrument level.

The assessment of whether credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly will be one of the critical
judgments used in impairment model prescribed in SLFRS 9 - “Financial Instruments” which uses combination of
both gualitative factors and backstop based on delinquency. The Bank will compare the risk of default at the

assessment date with the risk of default at initial recognition. This assessment is to be carried out at each
assessment date.

The Bank's Credit portfolio is made up of the following categories:

E Corporate

- Consumer

- SME

- Investment in other debt instruments

Far the purpose of calculating life time expected losses, as a minimum, if one ar more of Lthe following factors/
conditions are met, it shall be considered as a significant increase in credit risk:

- When contractual payments of a customer are more than 30 days past due;
When the risk rating of a customer or an instrument has been downgraded to B+ by an external credit
rating agency. In the event of no external credit rating is available, Bank will map its internal credit risk
ratings with the ratings issued by the external credit assessment institutions (ECAIL), as per the Basel Il

- When reasonable and supportable forecasts of future economic conditions directly affect the performance
of a customer/group of customers, portfolios or instruments;

- When a significant change in the geographical locations of 3 customer or natural catastrophes that directly
impact the performance of a customer/group of custamers or an instrument;
When the value of collateral significantly reduces or reliability is doubtful;
When a customer is subject to litigation that may significantly affect the perfarmance;

. Frequent changes in the senior management of an institutional customer;

- Delay in the commencement of business operations/projects by more than one year;

- rodification of terms resulting in concessions, including extensions, deferment of payments, waiver of cove

- When the custamer is deceased/insolvent;

- When the hank is unable to contact or find the customer;

- A fall of 50% or mare in the turnover ar profit before tax of the customer as compared to the previous year
for two consecutive years; and

: Erasion in net-worth by more than 25% as compared to the previous year.
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5 Financial risk management [contd)

5.4 Impairment assessment [contd)
The key inputs used for measurement of ECL are likely to be the term structures of the following variables:

- Probability of default (PD) - PD estimates are estimates at a certain date, which are calculated based on statistical
models, and assessed wsing various categories based on homogeneous characteristics of exposures. These statistical
models are based on internally compiled data comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors, Bank forecast PD
by incorporating forward looking economic variable (GOP).

- Loss Given Default (LGD) - LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Bank estimates LGD
parameters based an regulatory rates issued by CBSL due to lack of historical data.

- Exposures at Default (EAD) - EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Bank derives the
EAD fram the current exposure to the counterparly and potential changes to the current amount allowed under the
contract including amortization. The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying amount.

The methodology used in the Expected Credit Loss is explained in Note 4.3.9. to Financial Statements. As explained
in the said note, the Bank has made allowances for overlays where required to address the uncertainties and
potential implications.

Management assessment of impairment provisioning for financial assets

The impacts of cconamic crisis has necessitated changes ta the existing approach of computing ECL for the financing
portfolic of the Bank. The Management has adopted prudent measures to consider multiple economic factors such
as GOP growth rate, interest rate, exchange rate, unemployment rate and inflation rate to account for the changes
in the macro environment indicators which have deteriorated due to the current economic crisis and to cater
impacts of post revival conditions,

The Management is of the view that sufficient buffers are in place to effectively mitigate any risks arising fram
potential credit losses. The Bank cantinues to review its portfalio pertaining to individual and collective impaired
accounts with recoveries being constantly followed up by designated staff members while adhering to regulatary
guidelines and wellbeing of customers.

5.4.1 Concentration risk

In order to mitigate the concentration risk, MCB regularly reviews its partfolio concentration across the various
industrial sectors, barrawer groups, collateral assigned and borrower categories. Sector wise credit exposures are
provided in the Note 18 to the financial statements.

5.4.2  Fair value of collateral held against loans and advances to customers

Bank focuses on collateralized lending, which enahbles the Bank in mitigating its risk on credit portfolio. The collateral
comes in various forms as stipulated in Credit Hand Book of the Bank. The fair value of collaterals is generally
assessed, at a minimum, at inception and based on the Bank's annual reporting schedules. The Bank usually obtains

appraisals of collateral on a frequent basis as the current value of the collateral may be an input to the impairment
measurement,

Collateral would include loans secured by immovable property, real estate, movable equipment and machinery,
vehicle mortgages, inventory and book debts, shares, demand promissory notes / personal guarantees, corporate
guarantees, trust certificates, negative pledge/ agreement to mortgage / undertaking to mortgage, insurance policy
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5

Financial risk management {contd)

5.4 Impairment assessment (contd)

5.4.2  Fair value of collateral held against loans and advances to customers (contd)

As at 31 December 2024

Gross Loans &

Fair Value of

Met Exposure

Advances Security . o
Against Individually Impaired -
Immovable property 741,680,159 155,735,911 585,944 28
Deposits - -
Others 125,223,942 139,946,405 -
Unsecured {Covered with loan agresment) 76,215,569 17,684 76,197,885
Total against individually impaired (A) 9,431,196,710 295,700,000 b62,142 133
Against collectively Impaired
Immaovable property 1,456,817,002 5,794,647,374
Deposits 2,274 367 178 1,754,112,126 520,255,652
Others 3,995,010,343 2,214,706,687 1,780,303,656

Unsecured {Covered with loan agreement)
Total against collectively impaired (B)

2,546,386,501

2,546,386,501

10,272 ,581,624

9,763,466,187

4,846,945,809

Total (A+B) 11,215,701,284  10,059,166,187 5,529,146,412
Leases ¥ >
Grand total 11,215,701,294  10,059,166,187 5,529,146,412

Approximately 40% of the total advances of Bank is secured against immovable property and cash deposits held
with the Bank respectively. Further 37% of the loans are secured apainst olther securities including movable
property, etc. Approximately 79% of stape 3 advances of the Bank are secured against immovable property and cash

deposits held within the Bank.

Similarly, in year 2023 figures are as fallows.

As at 31 December 2023

Gross Loans &

Fair Value of

Net Exposure

Advances Security
Against Individually Impaired
Immovable property FT2.169.354 924 7247 H57
Deposits 29184 634 36,000,000
Others 139,218,909 81,422,774 57,796,135
Unsecured {Covered with loan agroeement) 104,482,161 103,629,369 852,792
Total against individually impaired (A) 1,045,055,063 1,145,200,000 58,648,927

Against collectively Impaired
Immovable property

1,994 862,657

A4,246,720,175

Deposits 2,236,223,959 2,291,228,507 .
Others 3,709,581 436 97,042,705 3,612,538,731
Unsecured {Covered with loan agreement) 2,115,281,912 3,552,120 2,111,729,792

Total against collectively impaired (B) 10,055,949 964 6,638,543,507 5,724,268,523
Total (A+B) 11,101,005,027 7,783,843,507 5,782,917,450
Leases 1,594,570 . 1,594,570
Grand total 11,102,599,597 7,783,843,507 5,784,512,020
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5 Financial risk management {contd)
5.4 Impairment assessment {contd)

5.4.2  Fair value of collateral held against loans and advances to customers (contd)
Approximately 45% of the total advances of Bank is secured against immovable property and cash depasits held
with the Bank respectively. Further 34% of the |oans are secured against other securitios including movable

property, etc. Approximately 77% of stage 3 advances of the Bank are secured against immaovable property and cash
deposits held within the Bank.

5.5 Market risk
Market Risk is the risk of financial fosses resulting from unfavorable changes in underlying market factors, including
intarest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices, commaodity prices and market volatility.

Treasury Middle office within the Risk Management Department monitors the treasury operating limits, including
bul not limited to; Net Open Position Limits, dealer limits, counter party limits, stop loss limits otc., which are
regularly reviewed and updated as per the prevailing business requirements, industry best practices, regulatory
guidelines and Bank's internal policies and procedures.

Ihe Bank measures and manages market risk by using conventional methods i.o. notional amounts, sensitivity and
combinations of various limits. The Bank also uses WaR (Value at Risk) technique for market risk assessment of
positions assumed by its Treasury. In-house and vendor based solutions are used for calculating mark to market
value of positions and generating VaR and PVBP (Price Value of a Basis Point) numbers.

Value at Risk (VaR} : which measures maximum potential loss at 99% confidence level over 1 day holding period
based on the day's cutstanding risk positions across the entire marked to market exposure,

Bank exposes to Foreign exchange due to changes in the wvalues of current holdings and Tuture cash flows
denominated in currencies other than the home currency due to the exchange rate fluctuation and volatility. The
core abjective of foreign exchange risk management is to ensure that the fareign exchanpge exposure of the Bank
remains within defined risk parameters and insulates the Bank against undue losses that may arise due to volatile
mavements in foreign exchange rates or inlerest rates.

Limit structure to manage foreign exchange risk is in place. Net open position and gap limits on different tenors in
major currencies are established and monitored on a regular hasis. Stress testing on foreign exchange portfolio
conducted as per CBSL requirements is a regular feature of the foreign exchange risk management.
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5

Financial risk management {contd)

5.5 Market risk (contd)

Following table shows the assets which are exposed to market risk in the Banking book.

Fage 33

2024 -
Carrying amount Trading MNon trading il
portfolios portfolios
Assets subject to market risk
Trading assets - >
Derivative financial instruments 157,351 - 157,351
Loans and advances to customers 9,839,910,074 - 9,835,910,074
Financial instrurnents - FYQCI 11,695,234,943 - 11,695,234 943
Financial investrments — amortised cost = - E
Placements with Banks 2,625 754,727 2,625,754 727
Liahilities subject to market risk
Derivative financial instruments -
Deposits from customers 15,828,135,952 15,828,135,982
Borrowings A50,058,.630 450,098,630
Other borrowings 0,485 468 - 0,485 468
2023
Carrying amount Trading Non trading
portfolios portfolios

Assets subjoct to market risk

Trading assets

Derivative financial instruments

Loans and advances to customers
Financial instruments - FWOCI
Financial investments — amortised cost
Placements with Banks

Liabilities subject to market risk
Derivative financial instruments
Deposits from customers
Borrowings

Other borrowings

9,546,297,171
12,933,559,995

4,160,046,500

16,713,312,085

1,901,503,256

5.5.1 Interest rate sensitivity on interest bearing assets and liabilities
The table below depicts the interest rate sensitivity based on the interest rate sensitive positions as at 31st
Decermber 2024, In its cumulative position up to 12-month time bucket, Bank carries an asset sensitive position. This
assel sensitive position will vary for each time bucket up to 12 months period, The interest rate sensitivity of the
Bank indicates that in case of an interest rate decling, the Bank would tend to experience a lass of LKR 105 Mn in its
Met Interest Income (NI} while in case of interest rate increase the Bank would enhance its Net interest income by
LKR 105 Mn. This interest rate risk exposure is guantified based on the assumed change in the interest rates for each

time period given in the table shown below.

AR g
T

ar%
l*- e

9,546,297,171
12,933,559,995

4,160,046,900

16,713,312,089

1,901,503,296
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5 Financial risk management (contd)
5.5 Market risk (contd)
5.5.1

Parameter Otol Month Owerl-upto3

Manths

Interest rate sensitivity on interest bearing assets and liabilities {contd)

Over3-upto b6 Overb-uptol2
Months Months
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Total

Total interest-bearing as: 5,450,560 849 13,238 215973
Total interest

-bearing labilities
Met interast

4,900,219,263 2,761,972 858

1,428,476,447 2,799,510,156

1,362,550,057 3,372,358,779

22,916,763,425

12,397,100,956

-bearing

assets (labilities) 550,341,586 10,476,743,116
Curnulative gap 550,341,586 11,026,584,702
Assumed change
in interest rates 1% 1%
Impact 5,503,416 104,762,431

Met impact on M if interest rates increase
MNet impact on NI if interest rates decline

65,926,390 572,848,623

11,092,511,092  10,519,662,469
1% 1%

659,264 (5,728,486)

10,519,662,469
33,189,099,843

105,156,625
105,196,625
(105,196,625)

MCB Bank possesses one year interest rate sensitive assets of LKR 23 Bn and rate sensitive liabilities for LKR 12 Bn.
Currently Lhe impact from the interest rate fluctuations of 1% + or [1%) is moderate at LKR 105 Mn. In the backdrop
of declining market interest rate trend, the Bank stand to enjoy botter care business spreads specially with cost of
funding moving down with reprising effect coming into play whereas lending rates are mostly fixed for longer

lenure.
Similarly, inyear 2023 figures are as fallows.

Parameter 0to 1 Month Owverl-upto3

Months

Over3-uptob Overb6-uptol2
Maonths Months

Total

lotal interest-bearing as: 8,465,131,960
Total interest

10,710,804,993

-bearing liahilities 3413 494 687 3,465 085,167

2,772,741,00% 1,130,964,988

1,251,845,086 3,624,999,412

23,079,642 950

11,754,424, 352

Met interest
-bearing
assets (liabilities)

5,052,637,273  7.245,719.827

1,520,895523 (2,494,034, 424)

11,325,218,599

Cumulative gap 5,052,637,273 12,298,357,100
Assumed change in
interest rates 1% 1%
Impact 50,526,373 72,457,198
Met impact on NIl if interest rates increase

Met impact an NIl if interest rates decline

13,819,253,022 11,325,218,598

1% 1%
15,708,959 {24,940,344)

42,495,465,993

113,252,186
113,252,186
(113,252,186)

one year interest rate sensitive assets of LKR 23 Bn and rate sensitive liabilities for Rs 11.75 Bn. Currently the impact
from the interest rate fluctuations of 1% + or (1%) is moderate at LKR 113.2 Mn.
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5 Financial risk management (contd)

5.5 Market risk (contd)

5.5.2  Foreign exchange position as of 31 December 2024
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Currency Spot Forward Net Open Excﬁange Overall position
Net Net Position Rate in LKR
AUD < = - -
EUR 19,925 19,925 305.42 6,085,597
GBP 3,978 0 3,978 368.10 1,464,405
HKD (4,730) : {4,730) 37.76 (178,595)
1PY (235,174) = (235,174) 1.87 (439,775),
CNY = = 2 -
5GD (10,631) (10,631} 215,37 (2,289,633)
| SAR (106,962) (106,962) 78.10 (8,353,745)
usD (233,007) {26,500} {259,507} 203.31 (76,115,945}
Total Exposure (79,828,115)
Total capital funds as per the latest Audited Financial Statements [Capital base as at 31st
el B,561,683,253
December 2024)
Total exposure as a % of total capital funds as por the latest audited financial statements 0.93%

Similarly, in year 2023 figures aro as fallows;

Currency Spot Forward Net Open Exchange Overall position
MNet MNet Pasition Rate in LKR
AUD - : - -
EUR 10,224 10,224 358,02 3,660,396
GBP 1,281 1,281 411.93 527,682
HEKD {4,730) (4,730) 41,48 (196,190)
JIPY (133,790) (133,790 2.28 (305,041)
CNY - = - -
SGD [5,416) [5.416) 24540 (1,325,086)
SAR (118,377) (118,377) 86,40 (10,227,773)
usD (171,848) (171,848} 324.00 (55,678,752)
Total Exposure (63,548,764)
Total capital funds as per the latest Audited Financial Statements [Capital base as at 315t Decembd 8,289,277,417
Total exposure as a % of total capital funds as per the latest audited financial statements 0.77%

5.5.3  Forex risk in Net Open Position (NOP)
The table indicates the exchange rate risk exposure based on its net open pasition to different currencies. As of 31st
December 2024, bank carried USD net open “Short” position. The bank will be exposed to exchange rate risk in case,
LKR appreciate against USD. The sensitivity analysis on this exposure at deferent shack levels is presented below.

A sensitivity analysis of foreign currency net open position was carried out applying shock level increase of 1%, 3%
and 5% level on the current exchange rate and the impact on USD equivalent NOP and the impact on income

staterment is as follows.
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5 Financial risk management (contd)

5.5 Market risk (contd)
5.5.3  Forexrisk in Net Open Position (NOP){contd)

Sensitivity Analysis for the Exchange Rate Risk Exposure as at 31st December 2024

Position as at 31 December 2024 Amount

MNet exposure — LISD (245,663)
Overall exposure in LKR = {72,055,353)
Exchange rate (USD/LKR) 293.31

Effect on income statement (LKR)

If Exchange rate appreciates by 1% (720,554)
If Exchange rates appreciates by 3% {2,161,661)
If exchange rale appreciates by 5% {3,602,768)

The bank has a net USD liability position of 245,663 USD, with a total exposure of (72.06 million LKR) at the current
exchange rate of 233 USD/LKR. If the LKR appreciates, the bank incurs a negative impact on the income statement. A
1% appreciation {exchange rate decrease) results in a 720K LKR loss, while a 5% appreciation leads to 2 3.6M LKR
loss, highlighting the bank's exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Similarly, inyear 2023 figures arc as follows,

Position as at 31 December 2023 Amount
Met exposure — USD {196,140)
Overall exposure in LER (53,549,470}
Exchange rate (USD/LKR) 324.00
Effect on income statement {LKR)
If Exchange rate appreciates by 1% {635,495)
If Exchange rates appreciates by 3% (1,906,484)
If exchange rate appreciates by 5% (3,177,473)

5.5.4  Liquidity risk

To manage the liquidity, which represents the Bank's ability to fund assets and meet obligations as they become
due, the Bank's asset-liability mismatches are monitored by preparing the asset liability statements on a regular
basis enabling the senior management to take appropriate measures.

ALCO, headed by the Country General Manager, monitors and manages the Bank's overall assets and liabilities
structure through constant monitoring, and implementing carrective actions through various banking products and

mechanisms such as the management of advances, deposits and investment portfolios.

Aonet liguid asset to deposits from customers is depicted below.

2024 2023
Met liquid assets to deposits from customers
As at 31 December 01.55% 58.11%
Average for the year 98.85% 105.73%
Maximum for the year 108.79% 122.11%
mMinimum for the year 28.25% 89.35%

The Bank monitors the following liquidity ratios to assess funding reguirements |
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5 Financial risk management (contd)

5.5 Market risk (contd)

5.5.4  Liquidity risk (contd)

Advances to Deposit Ratio 2024 2023
Average for the Year ended 70.71% B5.75%
Minimum for the Year ended 55.683% 49.,55%
taximum far the Year ended 83.60% 79.51%
As at 31 December B9, B 05 0B
Statutory Liquid Asset Ratio 2024 2023
Average for the Year ended BA.77% 91.85%
Minimum for the Year ended 74.43% 69,764
Maximum for the Year ended 97.42% 102.73%
As at 31 December B31.30% 94.59%

Liguid assets include Cash and Short-term Funds, Bills purchased and short term Investments. Liahilities to external
stakehalders include deposits, borrowing and other liabilities.

To manage the Liguidity Risk arising from Financial Liabilities, the Bank holds liquid assets comprising Cash and Cash

Cquivalents and Government treasury bills for which there are an active and liquid market. These assets can be
readily sold to meet liquidity requirements,

Banks arc required to comply with the provisions of the Basel 1l framework with a view to promate the short-term
resilicnce of a bank’s liguidity risk profile through the introduction of the Liquidity Coverage Ratio {LCR) of 100% and
Met Stable Funding ratio of 100%. Accardingly, as of 31st December 2024, Bank reported all currency LCR ratio of
929% and Net Stable Funding Ration (NSFR) as 240% which remain comfortably above the CBSUs minimum
requirements,

The Bank maintained liquidity levels well above the required regulatory levels throughout the year. Further as
against a lowered statutory liquidily asset requirement by the balance sheet date, the Bank maintained liguid assets
well above the regulatory limit, in order to cater to any urgent needs of customers and to provide flexibility Lo the
bank to pursue strategic priorities.

The maturity profile of undiscounted cash flows of the Bank's financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2074
has been disclosed in Note 35 {iii).

5.6 Operational risk
Operational Risk is the risk of a |oss resulting from an inadequacy or a failure applicable to peaple, processes,

technology or external events, Currently the Bank is reporting operational risk capital charge under Basic Indicator
Approach [(BIA).

The Bank's objective is to manage operational risk so as to aveid financial losses and damage to the Bank's
reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to aveid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity,

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is
assigned to senior management within each business unit. This responsibility is supported by the development of
overall Bank's standards for the management of operational risk in the following areas:

- requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent autharization of

- requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of the transaction.

- compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements,

- documentation of controls and procedures.

- requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy o
procedures to address the risks identified,

4 requirerments for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial actions.
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5 Financial risk management (contd)

5.6 Operational risk (contd)

S development of contingency plans;

- training and professional development;

- ethical and business standard; and

- risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective,

Compliance with Bank's standards is suppoarted by a program of periodic reviews undertaken by Internal Audit.

The results of Internal Audit reviews are discussed with the management of the business unit to which they relate,
with summaries submitted ta the senior management of the Bank.

5.7 Capital management
The main objectives of managing bank's capital are as follows:

maintain sufficient capital to meet minimum regulatory capital requirement.
hold sufficient capital to support banks risk appetite
- allocate capital to business to support the bank's strategic objectives.

Further in terms of governance frame work for Banks overseas Operations, issued by the State Bank of Pakislan,
MCB Pakistan is required to plough back at least 50% of their overseas annual profit after tax, Accordingly, MCB Sri
Lanka needs to repatriate 50% of the audited Profit After Tax to MCE Pakistan.

5.7.1  Statutory minimum capital requirement and capital management
As reguired by the circular issued by Central Bank of 511 Lanka on “Enhancement of Minimum Capital Requirement

of Banks" the Bank was required to increase its capital as follows in the interest of a strong and sound banking
sysierm.

{a}]  Rs. 3 Billian by 31 December 2011
{b)  Rs. & Billion by 31 December 2013
(e} BRs. 5 Billion by 31 December 2015

The Bank achieved the target Core Capital of Rs.3 Bn. by 31st December 2011, Rs.4 Bn. by 31st December 2013 and
Rs. 5 Bn by 31st December 2015 as stipulated by CBSL.

The Bank manages its capital considering repulatory capital reguirements. CBSL sets and monitors capital
requirements for licensed banks in 5ri Lanka based on the Basel Framework. Thus the Bank's operations are directly
supervised by the CBSL and the Bank is required to comply with the Provisions of the Basel Il framework in respect
of regulatory capital. As per the Basel Il framework in respect of regulatory capital, Commercial banks in Sri Lanka
with Asset less than LKR.500 Billion, need to maintain a Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) including capital

conservation buffer of 7.00%, Total Tier 1 Including capital conservation buffer of 8.50% and Total capital ratio of
12.50%.

The Bank computes CAR as a ratio of its capital to its risk weighted assets. Calculations of the risk weightings defined
under credit risk and market risk are based on the standardized approach whereas operational risk is computed by
using the Business Impact Analysis (BIA).
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5

Financial risk management (contd)

5.7 Capital management (contd)

5.7.1  Statutory minimum capital requirement and capital management (contd)

As of 31st December 2024, Bank reported a Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) including capital conservation

buffer of 61.10%, Tatal Tier 1 including capital conservation buffer of 61.10% and Total Capital Ratio of 62.04%
which remain comfortably above the CBSL's capital requirements.

[tem Amount
Commaon egquity Lier 1 capital 7,908,312,245
Total Tier 1 capital 7,908,312 245
Total capital 8,030,521,267
Total risk weighted amount 12,943,916,777
Risk weighted amount for credit risk 9. 776,721,332
Risk weighted amount for market risk 79,605,355
Risk weighted amount for operational risk 3,087,590,090
Common equity tier 1 capital ratio 61.10
Total Tier 1 capital ratio 61.10
Total capital ratio G2.04

As af 31st December 2023, Bank reported a Common Eguity lier 1 capital (CET1) including capital conservation
buffer of 53.79%, Total Tier 1 including capital conservation buffer of 53.79% and Total Capital Ratio of 54.66%
which remain comfortably above the CBSL's capital reguirements.

Item

Amount

Commaon equity tier 1 capital 8,180,485,855
Total Tier 1 capital 8,180, 485,855
Total capital 8,313,163.874
Total risk weighted amount 15,208,282.370
Risk weighted amount for credit risk 10,614,241,57/0
Risk weighted amount for market risk 67,737,458
Risk weighted amount for operational risk 4,526,303,342
Common equity tier 1 capital ratio 53.79
Total Tier 1 capital ratio 53.79
Total capital ratio 54.66
5.8 Environmental and Social Risk Management {(ESRM) Guidelines & Climate Risk Management

5.8.1  Environmental and 5ocial Risk Management (ESRM)
The Bank is committed in managing environmental and social risks as part of its responsible banking and sustainable
development goals. We assess and mitigate potential risks related to our business activities, lending, and
investments, ensuring that environmental and social factors, including climate change and community impacts, are
integral to decision-making. The Bank has implemented robust risk management policies to ensure compliance with
regulations and international standards. By promoting sustainability, we aim to minimize negative impacts and
support initiatives that foster long-term environmental and social well-being, Qur approach continues to evolve in
alignment with global best practices and local regulatory requirements.
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5 Financial risk management (contd)

5.8 Environmental and Social Risk Management (ESRM) Guidelines & Climate Risk Management (cont.)

5.8.2 Climate risk management

In recognition of the growing importance of environmental sustainability, the Bank has taken proactive steps to
integrate climate risk management into its overall risk framework. As part of our commitment to responsible
banking, we are continually assessing and managing the potential risks assaciated with climate change that may
impact our operations, portfolio, and stakeholders,

This includes identifying physical and transition risks related to climate change, evaluating their potential impact on
our husiness, and implementing strategies to mitigate and adapt to these risks. The Bank is actively working towards
enhancing its climate-related disclosures in line with global best practices and regulatary requirements.

By focusing on sustainable practices, the Bank seeks to contribute to the global efforts of combating climate change,
while ensuring that we maintain long-term resilience and stability in the face of evolving environmental challenges.
Our approach to climate risk management is continuously evolving, with a commitment to aligning with global
standards and supparting the transition to a low carbon economy.

] MNew and revised IFRS Accounting Standards in issue but not yet effective
Ihe following new accounting standards and interpretations are issued by IASB but not yet adopted by CA 5ri Lanka.

a) Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - Lack of Exchangeability
The amendments specify how to assess whether a currency is exchangeable, and how to determine the exchange
rate when it is not,

The amendments state that a currency is exchangeable into another currency when an entity is able to oblain the
other currency within a time frame that allows for a normal administrative delay and through a market or exchangs
mechanism in which an exchange transaction would create enforceable rights and obligations.

An entity assesses whelher a currency is exchangeable into another currency at a measurement date and for a
specified purpose. If an entity is able to obtain no more than an insignificant amount of the ather currency at the
measurement date for the specified purpose, the currency is not exchangeable into the other CUFrency.

The assessment of whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency depends on an entity’s ability to
obtain the other currency and not on its intention or decision to do so.

When a currency is not exchangeable into another currency at a measurement date, an entity is required to
estimate the spot exchange rate at that date. An entity’s objective in estimating the spot exchange rate is to reflect
the rate at which an orderly exchange transaction would take place at the measurement date between market
participants under prevailing economic conditions.

The amendments do not specify how an entity estimates the spot exchange rate to meet that objective. An entity
can use an observable exchange rate without adjustrment or anather estimation technique,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025, with earlier
application permitted. An entity is not permitted to apply the amendments retrospectively. Instead, an entity is
reguired to apply the specific transition provisions included in the amendments.
The above standard does not have an impact on the Bank's financial statements.
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6 New and revised IFRS Accounting Standards in issue but not yet effective {contd)
b) Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 - Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments

These amendments clarify the requirements far the timing of recognition and derecognition of some financial assets
and liabilities, with a new exception for some financial liahilitios settled through an electronic cash transfer system.
These amendments further clarify and add further guidance for assessing whether a financial asset meets the solely
payments of principal and interest {SPPI) criterion.

These amendments add new disclosures for certain instruments with contractual terms that can change cash flows
[such as some instruments with features linked to the achievement of environment, social and governance (ESG)
targets); and make updates to the disclosures for equity instruments desipnated at Fair Value through Qther
Comprehensive Income {FVOCH,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026, with earlier
application permitted.

The above standard does not have a material impact on the Bank’s financial statcments,

c) IFR5 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements
IFRS 18 replaces IAS 1, carrying forward many of the requirements in 145 1 unchanged and complementing them
with new requirements. In addition, some [AS 1 paragraphs have been moved to IAS 8 and IFRS 7.

IFRS 18 introduces new requirements to:

- present specified categories and defined subtotals in the Income statement.
- provide disclosures on management-defined performance measures (MPMs) in the notes to the financial sta
- improve aggregation and disaggregation.

An entity is required to apply IFRS 18 far annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2027, with carlier
application permitted. The amendments to 1AS 7 and IAS 33, as well as the revised 1A% & and [FRS !, boocome

effective when an entity applies IFRS 18. IFRS 18 requires retrospective application with specific transition
provisions,
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7.

8.1

Met interest income

Interest income

Flacement with banks

Loans and advances Lo customers
Financial assels al amortised cost
Financial assets at FVOC! [Note 7(a)]
Total interest income

Interest expenses

Banks and other borrowings

Deposits from customers

Interest exponse on lease liahility [Mote 21 .biii)]

Securitics sold under repurchase agresments [Mote 7(a)]

Total interest expenses

Met interest income

(a) MNetinterestincome from Sri Lanka Government Securities

Interest income
Interest expenses

Met fee and commission income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Met fee and commission income

Comprising;

Loans

Trade and remittances
Depasits

Guaranieas

Fee and commission income

Loans

Trade and remitlances
Deposits

Fee and commission expense

Other operating income

Gain on revaluation of foreign exchange
Dividends on financial assets at FVOCI

Profit on sale of Property, plant and equipment
Charges recovered

Overseas rebate - overdrawn Nostro

Others

Other operating income

2024

189,638,366
978,723,306
10,988,529
1,456,428,400

2023

339,366,301
1,410,401,590
21,662,114
2,367,948 619

2,635,778,601

4,139,378,624

|26,069,295)
(949,597,540)
{24,085,013)
{81,565,435)

(16,584,384)
(1,290,335,835)
(22,224,903)
(44,228,570

{1,081,327,283)

{1,373,373,692)

1,554,451,318

2,766,004,932

1,456,478,400
(81,565,435)

2,367,948,619
(44,228,570

1,537,993,835

2,323,720,049

2024 2023
111,379,309 93,330,933
(27,118,791} (25,606,578)
84,261,118 73,724,255
2024 2023
149,412 714,594
87,138,831 78,748,310
8,673,921 7,296,324
20,417,745 13,071,705
111,379,909 99,330,933
{338,573} {306,116)
(13,894,073} (10,978,768)
(12,886,147) (14,322,294)
(27,118,791) {25,606,5678)
2024 2023
112,470,168 151,949,589
2,876,200 1,594,100
259,233
43,763,145 43,290,531
38,478,931 39,715,964
3.5827759 4,374,874
201,221,224 441,134,291
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10,

11.

12.

13.

Impairment losses/ {reversal) on financial instruments

Financial assets at amortised cost - Loans and advances
Stage 1
Slape 2
Stage 3

Hinancial assets at amortised cost - debt instrumants
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3

Contingent liabilities and commitments
Stage 1

Stape 2

Slage 3

Total

Personnel expenses

Salary and bonus

Contribution to Cmployees’ Provident Fund
Centribution to Frmployees' Trust Fund

Exponses on Defined Benefit Obligations [Mote 27)
Amuortization of prepaid employee bensfits

Other expenses

Auditors' remuneration - Audit

Auditors' remuneration - Non audit

Professional and legal expenses

Head office exponses

Office administration and establishment EXpEnsns

Income tax expense

(a) Current tax expense
Current tax an profit for the year
Under/iover) provision far the previous year

Deferred tax expenses
Deferred tax assets recognized/{reversal) during the year [Note 26]

Total income tax expense

2024

82,392,878
13/,466,335
{39,348,008)

Pape 43

2023

(73,033,365)
{304,295,841)
F2510,876

5,216,144 {7,985,695)
4,749,741 {4,398,317)
190,477,091 (315,203,842)
2024 2023
422,583,014 442 B34,562
20,391,089 19,172,841
4,880,/93 4,545,832
15,437,444 16,626,733
6,333,120 1,977,766
469,625,469 485,157,734
2024 2023
4,602,000 3,643,992
BR4,447 1,028,039
13,309,707 6,232,450
143,000,000 133,000,000
342,011,914 300,852,355
503,808,068 444,756,836
2024 2023
201,564,403 646,484,476
78,886,115 5,872,497
280,450,518 652,356,973
57,287,320 (97,386,770)
57,287,320 {97,386,770)
337,737,838 554,970,203
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13,

14,

15,

16.

17.

Income tax expense (cont.)

{b} Reconciliation fram profit/{loss) before tax to current income tax expense
Accounting profit before tax

Dizallowable expenses

Allowable expenses

Adjusted profit/(loss) fram trade

Total statutory income

Less: Tax losses Set-0Off (Lip to a Limit of 35%
ot Total Statutory Incomae)

Taxable profit

Stalutory income tax rate

Current income tax expense

¢} Reconciliation between current tax expenses and the accounting profit
Accounting praofit before taxation

Tax at the apphcable tax rate of 30%

Tax effect from expenses not deductible for tax purpose

I'ax effect from allowable deductions and income not subject to tax
Subtotal

OverfUnder provision in previous years

Defarred tax reversal

Total Tax Expense

Cash and cash eguivalents

Local currency in hand

Fareign currency in hand

Balances with central banks
Statutory balances with central banks
Central bank of 5ri Lanka

MNon Statutory balances with central banks
Central bank of Srilanka

Page 44

358,670,176

2024 2023
720,648,079  1,531,713,766
712,567,796 933,971,773
(761,334,534)  [310,737,287)
671,881,331  2,154,948,252
671,881,341 2.154,948,252
671,881,341 2,154,948,252
30% 30%
201,564,403 646,484,476
720,648,079  1,531,713,766
716,194,424 459,514,130
213,770,339 280,191,532
[228,400,360) (93,221,186
201,564,402 646,483,476
78,886,115 5,872,497
57,287,320 (97,386, 770}
337,737,837 554,970,202
2024 2023

269,632,061

21,701,504 14,737,553
380,321,626 284,369,614
2024 2023
485,380,880 677,378,104
100,020,604 400,296,703
585,401,484 1,077,674,807

As required by provisions of Section 93 of the Monetary Law Act and amendments there to, 3 cash balance is maintzined with the
Central Bank of 5ri Lanka 25 explained in Note 4.2. The minimum cash reserve reguirement on Rupee deposit liabilities was 2% as at

31 December 2024,
Placements with banks

Placement with local banks
Flacerment with foreign banks
Total placement with banks

Derivative financial instruments

As at 31 December 2024

Currency swaps

Forward foreign exchange contracts

As at 31 December 2023
Currency swaps
Forward foreign exchange contracts

2024 2023
505,753,423 709,906,850
2,120,001,304 3,450, 140,050
2,625,754,727 4,160,046,900
Asset Liahility
157,351
157,351

The Bank's exposure under derivative contractsis closely monitored as part of the overall management of the Bank’'s market risk.

AN
)
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1E. Loans and advances to customers

Gross loans and advances [Note 18.a)

Stage 1
Stape 2
Stage 3

Less: Accumulated impairment (Mote 18.C)

Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Met loans and advances

Qualitative Explanation of Changesin Impairment Provision

2024

11,215,701,294

9,013,803,316
1,258,778,307
943,119,671

(1,375,791,220)
{252,396,470)

(456,043,949)
(667,350,801}

2023

11,102,599,597

8,744,191,816
1,313,352, 718
1,045,055,063

(1,556,302,426)
[381,035,968)

[547,263,665)
(628,002,793)

9,839,910,074

9,546,297,171

The Bank has made adeguate loss allowances in respanss to changes in the gross carrying amount of loans and
advances during the period. Key factors contributing to these changes include delayed or inconsistent repayments,
restructured facilities, and adverse financial trends observed in certain clients. Additionally, macroeconomic factors
such as exchange rate fluctuations and industry specific risks have been considered, impacling the recoverable

amaounts.

(a) Concentration of credit risk

The Bank monilors concenlrations of credit risk by product, currency and industry. An analysis of concentrations aof

credit risk from loans and advances as at the reporting date is shown below.

Concentration by Product

Overdralts

Trade finance

Lease rentals receivable [Note 18(b)|
Credit cards

Fawning

Staff loans

Term loans

Short-term loans

Concentration by Currency
ari Lankan Rupee
United States Dollar

2024 2023
3,064,104,051 3,140,079, 786
843,076,106 1,532,633,039
E 1,594,570
121,181,556 122,464,023
216,213,388 118,832,588
6,9/1,126,193 6,186,995,591
11,215,701,294 11,102,599,597

9,151,802,258
2,063,899,036

B,452,744,660
2,64%,854,937

11,215,701,294

11,102,599,597
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18. Loans and advances to customers

(a) Concentration of credit risk (cont.)

Concentration by industry
Agriculture and fishing
Manufacturing

Tourism

Transport

Construction

[radars

Others

Services

{b) Lease rental receivables

Within one year from the reporting date
Deposit of rentals
Unearned incame

Atter one year bul beflore five years from reporting date
Depasit of rentals
Unearned income

There ware no lease receivables beyond five years
Total lease rental receivables

2024

2,541,090,015
1,151,610,955

861,340,502
382,905,270
2202337053
575,975,310
3,440,551,989

2023

2,032,490,272
1,411,480,314

451,711,312
238,060,787
3,651,115,233
610,445,820
2,707,795,858

11,215,701,294

11,102,599,597

1,687,345

(92,775)

1,594,570
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18,

Loans and advances to customers (cont.)

{c}] Movements in Impairment charges during the year

As at 1 lanuary

Charge/iwrile back) to statement of profit / loss
Write-off /{recoveries) during the year

As at 31 December

Movement in provision for impairment during the year (Under SLFRS 9)

Stage 1

Stage 2

2024

1,556,302,425
(180,511,208)
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2023

1,253,483,005
107,519,331

1,375,791,220

1,556,302,426

Stage 3

Total

As at 1 January 2024
Charge / {write back) to statement of

381,035,968

547,263,605

628,002,793

1,556,302 426

profit / loss (128,639,498) [91,219,716) 34,345,008 {180,511,206)
As at 31 December 2024 252,396,470 456,043,945 667,350,801 1,375,791,220
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
As at 1 January 2023 322,765 482 228,203,945 702,513,668 1,253,483,00%
Charge / {write back) Lo stalement of
profit [ loss 58,2!(],43&__ 319,059,720 {74,510,875) 302,819,331
As at 31 December 2023 381,035,968 547,263,665 628,002,793 _-1,556,302,125
Concentration by product
As at 31 December 2024 Gross amount Impairment Carrying
allowance amount
Oyerdrafts 3,064,104,051 [336,465,262) 2,727,638,789
I rade finance 843,076,106 (198,611,073) Bad, 465,032
Lease rentals receivable - 2
Staff loans 121,181,556 3,285,396} 117,846,160
lerm loans 216,213,388 (7,482,424} 208, /30,963
Short-term 6,571,126,193 (829,947,063

As at 31 December 2023

Owerdrafts

Trade finance

Lease rentals receivable
Stalf loans

Term loans

Shart-term

G,141,179,131

11,215,701,294

11,375,791,220)

9,839,910,074

Gross amount Impairment Carrying

allowance amount
3,140,079,786 (319,824,395) 2,820,255,391
1,632,633,039 (274,305,915} 1,253,327,124
1,594,570 [85,983) 1,508,587
122,464,023 (3,343 606) 119,120,327
118,832,588 (6,640 028) 112,183,560
6,186,995,591 [947,093,409) 5,239,902,182

11,102,5589,597

(1,556,302,428)

9,546,297,171
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18, Loans and advances to customers (cont.)

18.d  Collateral wise analysis of loans and advances to customers
The Bank holds collateral against Loans and Advances to Other Customers in the form of mortgage interests over
property, other registered securities over assets, and guarantees, Estimates of fair value are based on the value of
collateral assessed at the time of lending, and updated on a frequent basis,

(i} Gross loans and advances to customers

Stage 1
Stage 2
Stape 3

(i) Stage3

Gross amount

Allowance for impairment
Carrying amount

Collateral wise analysis of 5tage 3 loans and advances (Gross)
Secured by movable assets
Secured by immovable assets

Secured by cash
Other securities

Clean

(iii) Total Balance assessed under stage 1 and 2

Stage 1
Stage 2

Allowance for Impairment

{iv] Sensitivity analysis on Stage 1 and 2

LGD 1% increase
1% decrease

PD 1% increase
1% decrease

EFA 1% increase
1% decrease

2024

9,013,803,316
1,258,778,307
543,119,671

2023

8,744,191,816
1,313,352,718
1,045,055,063

11,215,701,294

11,102,599,597

943,119,671 1,045,055,063
(667,350,801} (528,002,793}
275,768,870 417,052,270
65,729,113 65,523,608
741,680,159 748,609,121

29,184 634

59,454, 830 3,873,403
76,215,569 197,864,297
943,119,671 1,045,055,063

9,013,803,316

___1,258,778,307

8,744,191,816
1,313,352, 718

10,272,581,623

10,057,544,534

(708,440,419) (928,729%9,633)
9,564,141,204 9,129,244,901
4,012,988 3,457,013
(4,562,753) (3,457,013}
4,648,972 3,451,185
M,Ed ?,151} {3,451,185)
4,557,024 3,451,185
(4,557,024} {3,451,185)
e I'f:-;‘;,rs
W
Splonho o
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18.

19.

191

13.2

Loans and advances to customers (cont.)

{v] Stage wise movement in provision for impairment during the year (Under SLFRS 9)

As at 1 January 2024

Stage 1-2

Stage 1 -3

Stage 21

Stage 2 -3

Met impairment charpe for the year
As at 31 December 2024

As at 1 January 2023

Stage 1-2

Stage 1-3

Stage 2-1

Stage 2 -3

Net impairment charge for the year
A5 at 31 December 2023

Investment securities at FWOCI

Sri Lanka Government Securities [Note 19.1)
Unguoted Fguity securities [Note 193]
Net investment securities at FVOCI

Assets pledged as securities

Government of Sri Lanka - Treasury bills
Face value

Armortized cost

Market value

haturity

Unguoted equity securities

Lanka Clear (Private) Limited
Credit Information Bureau of 51 Lanka
Lanka Financial Services Bureau Limiled

Mo. of
shares

100,000
300
200,000
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Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
381,035,968 547 263,664 628,002,792
23,175,294 (23,175,234)

(151,814,792} [68,044,421) 39,348,009
252,396,470 456,043,949 667,350,801
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
377,765,482 228,203,945 702,513,669

[141,/33,328) 141,733,328

45,332,004 (46,332,004
- 3,163,296
153,671,810 223,658,396 [/7,6754,102)
381,035,968 547,263,665 628,002,793
2024 2023

11,692,204,943 12,930,925,995

3,030,000 3,030,000

11,695,234,943  12,933,559,995

2024

Value

1,000,000
30,000
2,000,000

3,030,000

11,964,730,000
11,664,304,402
11,6492,204,943

13,263,531,000
12,846,030,546
12,930,529,955

As at 2025 As at 2024
2023
Mo. of
Value
shares
100,000 1,000,000
300 30,000
200,000 2,000,000
3,030,000

T T—
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20,

la

(o)

Property, plant and equipment

Frechaold Land  Leaschold Computer Office Furnlture and BMuotor Tatal

and Buildings  Propertles Hardware Equipment Fittings Vehicles
Cost
Balance as at 1 lanuary 2023 213,000,000 94,571,558 223,491,897 34,072,048 39,506,457 53,220,080 647,862,040
Transfers - (615,132} [22,992,1E5) 223,050 152,082 - (22,992,185}
AMdditicns during the period E 60,000 1,452 509 - 550,616 E 072,235
Arewvaluation surplus E - 4 .
Dlsposals during the Year - 10,266,102)  [14,966,048)  [5,764,594) (2,944 905) - [33,941,649)
Balance a5 at 31 December 2023 213,000,000 831,750,324 186,986,273 28,530,504 27,513,250 53,220,080 593,000,431
Balance as at 1 January 2024 213,000,000 B3 750,374 1RG,9EG0.273 28,530,504 27,513,250 L3, 700,080 593,000,431
Iransfers - - - - . - -
Additions during the pericd 1,070,840 4,617,222 5.991,717 1,/29.031 13,408,810
deprocialion - - -
Disposals dusing the Year - = 3 - - 2
Balance as at 31 December 2024 713,000,000  B4,821,164 191,603,495 34,502,221 29,242,281 53,220,080 605,409,241
Accumulated Depreciation
Ralance as at 1 lamsary 'f!l':l‘%a - 88,096,190 145,562,178 F4.690,128 18,315,391 33,306,090 320,021,184
Transfers ; (497,797} (22,992,163} 35,314 da2 471 {22,992,163)
Charge for the Yoar 5,325,000 2,808,213 32,180,525 1,333,529 2,037,634 5,514,403 39,871,122
Dizposals during the Year = (10.255,433)  [14,965,935) |5, 858,447 2,830,410 - {33,310,235)
Balanee a5 a2 31 December 2023 5,325,000 80,179,172 139,784,603 70,950,315 18,385,646 38914572 303,539,908
Balance a5 at 1 lanuary 2024 5,325,000 BO,1F9152 1349, 784 803 FOLRG0L915 18,385,616 38,914,572 303,539,308
Transfars - - - - -
Charge Tar the Year 5325000 +AA5 AR 597,073 2,060,109 1,917,294 340550 35,158,561
Balance as at 31 December 2024 10,650,000 83,024,535 159,381,626  23017,024 20,302,990 22,327,348 338,698,960

Carrying Value

As at 31 Decamber 2023 207,675,000 3,571,152 47,201,670 7,579,568 8,127,604 14,305,508 289,460,523

As at 31 December 2024 202,350,000 1,796,629 32,221,869 11,505,157 8,939,341 10,897,736 267,710,772

The cost of Fully depraciatad assets still in use in the Company as 2t 318t December 2024 was Rs, 439,970,250/~ ( 2023 - Rs, 402,960, 262/-].
Land and building {condominium)
Address Extent Date of valuation Market value

Praperty ol Petiah Mo 235, Fifth Cross Streer , Cokmba 3501 5.0 26 Decembear 2022 213,000,000

The Cpen Market vzlue is intended to mean the best price at which an interest in a property might reasonably be expacted to be soid in the private
treaty as at the date of valuation, assuming,

), The progerty is prime angd most suitable for high rise development.
b). Located in & prime cormmercial area.

I building were stated at historical cost, the carrying emounts would have been as follows;

Land & Building [Condominium) Amount

Cost 19,055,187
Accumulated depraciation 14,291,697
Net book value 4,763,455

Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyse non flinancial instruments measured at fair value 3t the end of the prior reposting pericd, by the level of the fair value
hierarchy.

Froperty, Plant and Equipment Lewel 1 Ll 2 Level 3 Total

{Rs. 1Rs. {RAs.} s

Freehaid Land and Buildings 213,000,000 213000000

The Bank determined the fair value of its property using the income Capitalization Method, based on estimated rantzl income. Key inputs include a net
annual rent of LEKR 9.6 million and a cepitalitation rate of 4.5% [¥.F factor 22.22}. the saluation incorporates significan! unobservable inputs and was
conducted by an indepandent valuer using market-based assumplions
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20.

20.a

Property, plant and equipment {cont.)

Right-of-Use assets

Right-of-use assets related to leased branches and office premises are as below,

Cost

Balance at 01 January
Additions during the year
Dispasals during the Year
Balance at 31 December

Accumulated depreciation
Charge for the year

Balance as at 31 December

Lease liability against right of use asset

Page 51

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities during the period in accordance with SLFES 156

Lease liabilitics as at 1 Janwary

Finance cost on lease liability of right to use assets
Adjustment

Fayments during the year

Lease liabilities as at 31 December

Maturity analysis — Contractual discounted cash flows
Less than one year
Betweean one and tive years

More than five years
Total discounted lease liabilities at 31 December

Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Leases under 5LFRS 16

Depreciation of right of use assels
Finance cost on lease liability of right to use assets

Lease Cash Outflows

Payments on lease liabilities
Finance cost on lease liabilities
Total Cash Outflows for Leases

T s

2024 2023
145,887,312 186,417,605
24,626,981 .
10,364,610}
170,514,293 176,052,995
{35,771,742) _ (30,165,683)
134,742,551 145,887,312
2024 2023
160,265,131 209,592,351
24,095,013 22,224,903
41,739,269 (9,128,951}
(56,860,802) (53,423,172
178,238,611 169,265,131
2024 2023
46,991,678 28,513,451
131,246,933 133,311,165
: 7,440,505
178,238,611 169,265,131
2024 2023
35,771,742 30,165,683
24,095,013 22,224,903
59,866,755 52,390,586
2024 2023
{32,765,789)  (31,198,269)
{24,095,013)  (22,224,903)
(56,860,802)  (53,423,172)

T P
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21.

22,

23.

24,

Intangible assets

Caost

Balance at 1 fanuary
Transfers

Additions during the year
Balance at 31 December

Accumulated amortization
Balance at 1January
Transfers

Amortization for the year
Disposals during the Year
Balance at 31 December

MNet book value
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2024 2023
759,915,685 216,516,451
. 22,992,185
9,417,425 20,407,044
269,333,110 259,915,685
127,971,876 190,216,444
22,992,164
17,946,324 14,763,263
245,918,200 227,971,876
23,414,910 31,543,809

The cost of fully depreciated assets still in use in the Company as al 313t December 2024 was Rs. 226,926,834/ [ 2023 - Rs

182,106,045/=).

Other assets

[Deposits and prepayments
Sundry deposits

Pregaid staff benefits
Others

Due to banks

Borrowings from foreign banks

Deposits from customers

lotal deposits from customers

Product wise analysis of deposits from customers
Demand deposits (current accounts)

Savings doposits

Fined daposits

Call deposits

Margin deposits

Other deposits

Currency wise analysis of deposits from customers
Sri Lankan rupee

United States daollar

Great Britain pound

Euro

Others

2024 2023
A2,873,551 39,326,729
1,921,658 1,571,658
36,790,801 39,439,006
4,952,007 43,543,785
89,538,977 124,231,178
2029 2023
450,098,630
450,098,630 -
2024 2023
15,828,135 987 16,713,312 089

15,828,135 982

16,713,312,089

2,9599,779,421
3,293,858,867
9,352,483,184

92,372,266
89,642,238

3,173,352,381
5,068,623 569
8,207,132,359
75,035,041
68,867,127
120,297,617

15,828,135,982

16,713,312,089

12,922,332,433

12,532,531,944

2,816,431,618  4,135,755,896
21,369,560 35,415,262

11,319,255 10,044,208

56,683,106 64,779

rE“‘\ 15,828,135,982  16,713,312,089
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER
25, Other borrowings e 2023
Securities sald wnder repurchase agreaments X 5
Refinance borrowings 6,455 458 =
[ g
26. Deferred tax _Asset Lialihiy Met
31.12.2024 !1-12-:’07-:! 31.12 1924 31122023 1120004 31.12.2023
Broperty, plant and equipment - - Q485 023 #1050 9,485,628 7005
fewaluation gain A, #0000 &0, 77T0.E24 0,705,000 80,770,824
Agset under finance leases - - a7g 31N - 478,371
allowarce far loss on FYOCH investmant - 5,500,779 25,343 815 4 500,779 25 348 815
SECUMlies
Erployee benefit obligation 24,500,962 23875780 - 124,500,362 ) (23,895,780
Allowance for loan lossas 212532176 271,21, 21 - - (12,538 188] [271.271,201)
Right-of Lise assots - - 40,422,765 43 ThG, 1541 A3 422,765 43,766,154
Lease igbiliny aganst right of use asset 53,471 583 0,779,540 - = - 133,471,533 |5::.'|‘."_.'ﬂ,_51:ﬂ_&.'|_l
290,504 671 345,926,521 130,114,172 13?.ﬁ43,i31 {1170, 390,4549) (208,383,369
6.1 Aecconciliation of Deferred Tax Balance Hecognised in Recognised in Balanoe
2024 03,01,2024 prodit or loss cquity 31.12.2024 _
Liabdlity
Property, plant and equiprmesit 77,503 2,307,780 - 9, 4R5 628
Aovaluation gan G0, 770,824 - |E5, 824} 50,705,000
Assatunder finance leases N08,35L (478,371} -
PUOC renerve 25,349,834 [ 12.843,055} 9,500,779
_ Giiisa 1,829,340 (15,514 879) 19,6807
Assets
Fmiplayee benefit obligation 23,E75. 780 [, 754, 3659} 3,379,551 24,500,552
Altgwanice for loss on FWOCH investment securities F: s E
Alfowance For laan losses 271,271.201 158,7315,005) - 212,532,125
w Asset under SUFRS 16 leases 7013 3435 bU354/08 3 13,048,813
02,160,327 [55,457,971) 3,319,551 250,081,906 |
A s i L oy
Total {208,383, 385} 57,287 320 [19,294,430} [170,350,493)
Halance Recognised in Recognised.in Balance
2023 _ DLD1.2023 profit or lass ety 31.12.2023
Liability
Property, plant and equipment 13,294 444 13,116,515) - 7177909
Hewaiuatan gan BI040 - = 0,070,824
Asselunder finance laies 1,703,338 11.224 967 - 178,371
FVOC resernn 2,439,673 22,800,155 25,3149 A34
75,228,245 (4,391,502 22,390,155 93,776,938
Assets
Emplayes benefit obligation 15,057,861 1,093,583 3,724,336 21,E75. 730
Allowance for foss on FYOC) investmeant sacuntes -
Mlowance [or oan koases 154,242 532 7 D78 56T FTLEIL201
Asset under SLFRS 16 Leases 3,040,231 3,973,115 - 7,003,345
205,390,114 93,045,267 3,724,336 303,160,327
(130,162,435} [97.386,763) 19,165,819 [20%,383,389)




Page 54

MCB BANK LIMITED - SRI LANKA BRANCH
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER

2024 2023
27, Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)
Opening defined benefit obligation 70,585,935 63,526,205
Maovement in the present value of employee benefit iakility:
Interest cost 11,142,031 12,705,241
Current service cost 4,295,413 3,921 492
Graluity paid during the year [20,518,675) ({12,981, 456)
Actuarial {gain) flosses 11,265,168 12,414,453
Balance as at 31 December 81,669,873 79,585 935
The expense recognised in the income statement
Intersst cost 11,142,031 12,705,241
Current service cost 4295413 3,921,492
15,437,444 16,626,733
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial {gain)floss recognised 11,265,169 12,414,453
11,265,169 12,414,453
Principal acluariz! assumptions at the reporting date, are as follows.
[Miscount rate at 31 Decamber 11% 14%
Future salary increases 103 9%
Staff turnower rate 22% 21%
Disability rate (of morality table) 10 10%

Fetirement age 60 years

An independent Actuarial valuation of Lhe retirement benefit obligation was carried out by Actuarial Management
Cansultants (Private) Limited, a firm of professional acluaries,

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on 1967,/70 mortality table issued by the Institute of Actuaries, London.
At present, no plan assets are held to finance the retirement benefit obhgation,

Sensitivity analysis
The Tellowing table demonstrates the reasonable possible change in the key assumptions, employed with all other variables
held constant in the employment benefit liability measurement.

The sensilivity of the Income statement, statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial position, is the
effect of the assumed changes in discount rate and salary increment rate as depicted below.

tion
31 December 2024 Change In Assumptio
Percentage Increase Decrease
Discount rate (change by) 1% 14,460,653} 447,073
Salary increment rate (change by) 1% 912,053 (4,936,960)
In Assumpti

31 December 2023 Change In Assumptian

. Percentage Increase Decrease Ly
Discount rate (change by) 1% 12,376,715) 2,531,011
Salary increment, rate (change by) 1% 2,995 9491 12,853,022)

In practice this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlsted. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method [present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been
applied when calculating the pension liability recognized within the statement of financial position, '“‘“:tf;'g}tm{,\

. Dt
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27.

28.

29,

29.a

Defined benefit obligation (cont.)

Information about maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation

Information aboaut maturity

Within the next 12 months
Between I and 2 years
Between 3 and 5 years
Beyond 5 years

Total

Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation [years)

Other provisions (Off balance sheet impairment)

Loan cormmitment issued
Financial guarantee issued

Movements in Impairment charges during the year

As at 1 January
Charge/{write back) to

statement of profit [/ loss
As at 31 December

Movement in provision for impairment during the year (Under SLFRS 9)

As at 1 January 2024
Chargef{write back) to
statemcent of profit [/ loss
As at 31 December 2024

Total

As at 1 January 2023
Charge/{write back) to
statemaent of profit [/ lass
As at 31 December 2023

Total
Other liabilities

Sundry creditors

Cheques sent an clearing
Pay order issued

Other payables [Mote 29.3)
Lease liability [Mote 21.b.ii]

Loan commitmeant

2024 2023
12,216,476 20,528,604
20,033,393 20,124,144
33,667,045 27,628,348
1%, 752,959 J 11,304,840
81,665,873 79,585,936
3.0 3.00

2024 2023
29,857,655 43,738,613
3,518,954 103,851
33,376,619 43,342,504

Financial Guarantee

2024 2023 2024 2023
43238613 30,722,589 103,391 235,401
_ 113380948) 12516024 3,415,063 (131,510
29,857,665 43,238,613 3,518,954 103,891
o Laan commitment Financial Guarantee Total
_ Stagel Stage2 Stage 1 Stage 2
37,908,656 5,329,957 68,127 39,764 43,342,504
(8,562,284)  (4,818,664) 3,346,140 68,923 {9,965,885)
29,346,372 511,293 3,410,267 108,687 33,376,619
29,857,665 3,518,954 33,376,619
24,751,685 570,904 235,401 . 30,957,990
8,156,971 4,359,053 {171,274 39,764 12,384,514
37,908,656 5,329,957 64,127 39,764 43,382,504
43,238,613 103,891 43,322,504
2024 2023
26,267,432 27,992,732
164,685,247 397,323,127
35,382,753 37,803,329
417,766,636 298,368,158
178,238,611 169,265,131
826,835,679 530,252,477

Othar payzbles include amounts payable for head office expenses, provision for staff bonuses, and other miscellaneous
payable balances that have arisen in the ardinary course of the Bank's business,
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30. Assigned capital 2024 2023
Cpening balance 3,969,508,163 3,969,508, 163
Clasing balance 3,969,508,153 3,969,508,163

31. Reserves 2024 2023

Statutory Reserve Fund

Opening balance at 01 January 329,996,797 281,159,619
Transfer during the period 19,145,512 3 AR B37.1/8
Closing balance at 31 December 349,142,309 329,996,797

The Statutory Reserve Tund is maintained as required by the section 20 (1) of the Banking Act No. 30 of 1988, Bank
appropriated 5% of the profit after tax o fulfill the minimum requirement under section 2041} and the balance in the
Statutory Reserve fund will be used only for the purposes specified in the section 20(2) of the Banking Act No 30. of 1988,

32. Other reserves 2024 2023
Revaluation rescrve 141 864 524 141,798 700
Fair walue reserve 22,168 484 6/, 348 544
Foreign currency translation reserve 879,596,130 1,033, 782,862

1,043,629,138 1,242,930,106

33, Commitments and contingencies

In the normal course of business the bank makes various commitments snd incurs certain contingent liabilities with legal
recourse Lo its customers. No material losses are anticipated as a result of these transactions,

2029 2023
Commitments
Commitment for unutilised cradit facilities [Mote 28] 4,057,882 216 4, 265,360,496
Other commitments on forwards and swaps 394,276,115 -

4,452,158,331  4,265,366,496

Contingencies

Acceptance [Nate 28] 439,729,941 21,563,820
Documentary credits [Nole 28] 665,399,254 69,028,524
Guarantoes 216,915,572 128,780,984
Bill= for collection __ 4.287,945,999 3,640, 814,737

5,609,990,806 3,869,188,065
10,062,149,137 8,134,554,561

S
g
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34,

Financial assets and liabilities

Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities by Measurement Basis

Page 57

The following table provides a reconciliation between ling items in Lhe staterment of financial position and categories of

tinancial instruments.

{a) Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities by Measurement Basis as per SLFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

As at 31 December 2024

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with Central Banks
Flacemeant with banks

Derivative financial instruments
Loans and advances to customers
Debt and other financial instrumeant
Investmeant securities - Measured at

oo
Total financial assets

LIABILITIES

Due to banks

Deposits from customers
Other borrowings

Total financial liabilities

As at 31 December 2023
ASSETS

Cash and cash eguivalents

Halances with Central Banks
Flacerment with banks

Loans and advances 1o customers
Imvestment securities - measurad at
FYOC

Total financial assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits from custamers
Other borrowings
Total financial liabilities

Note

14
15
16
17
18
19
19

23
24
25

14
15
16
18
19

23
24

FVTPL FVOoCi Amortised cost Total
" . 380,321,626 380,321,626
. . 585,401,484 585,401,484
- . 2,625,754,727 7,625,754,727
154,951 157,351
% 2 9,%39,510,074 9,839,910,074
11,695,234,943 - 11,645,234,943
157,351 11,695,234,943 13,431,387.911 25,126,780,205
FVTPL Amortised cost Total
i 450,098,630 450,098,630
. 15,828 135882 15828135982
- 5,485,468 6,485 468
: 16,284,720,080  16,284,720,080
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost Total
- - 284 369,614 284 369,614
- - 1,077,674,807 1.077,674,807
. i 4,160,046,900 4 160,046,900

12,933,559,995

u,546,297,171

9546 297,171
12,933,555,095

12,933,559,995

15,068,388,492

28,001,948 487

FVTPL

Amortised cost

Total

16,/13,312,089
1,901,503,296

16,/13,312,089
1,901,503,296

18,614,815,385

1%,614,815,385

Unquoted equity investments of Rs, 3,030,000 are stated at cost as it was impractical to compute the markel value due to
unavailability of market information. However, Management has determined the impact as immaterial as it was less than

0.01 % of the total assets,
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34.

Financial assets and liabilities (cont.)

(k) Fair value hierarchy for assets carried at fair value

The lable below analyses financial investments measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period, by the level of the
fair value hierarchy.

31 December 2024 Level 1 Level T Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Irvestment sscurities at FYOCH

Government of 5ri Lanka treasury bills 11,685,234,943 11,685234,943
Derivative financial instrumeants 157,351 - 157 351
11,685,392,294 11,695,392,294
31 December 2023
Financial Assets
Investment securities at FVOCI
Government of 5ri Lanka treasury bills 12,933 559,995 12,933,559,995
12,933,559,995 : - 12,933,559,995

{c) Fairvalue of Financial Instruments carried at amertised cost

Sel out below is a comparisen, by class, of Lhe carrying amounts and fair values of the bank's financial assets and liabilities
that are not carried at the fair value in the financial statements. The fair valuss in the table below may be different from
the actual amounts that will be received/paid on the settlement or maturity of the financial instrument. For certain
instrurnents, Lhe fair value may be determined using sssumptions for which no ohservable prices are availabio,

As at 31 December

Carrying amount Fair value
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 380,321,676 380,321,626
Balances with Central Banks 585,401,484 585,401,484
Placements with banks 2,625,754.727 2,625,754, 727
Loans and recevables to customers 4,839,910,074 9,839,910,074
Liabilities
Mg to banks AS0,098,630 450,098,630
Due to other customers 15,828,135,982 15,8728,135,982
Other borrowings 6,485 468 £, 485, 468
As at 31 Decermber

Carrying amount Fair value
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 284,369,614 284 369,614
Balances with Central Banks 1,077 674,807 1,077,674,807
Placoments with Banks 4, 160,046,300 4. 160,046,900
Loans and receivables to customers 0,546,297,171 9,480,326,875
Liahilities
Due to other customers 16,713,312,089  16,713,312,089
Other borrowings 1,901,503,295 1,901,503, 296

Given below is the basis adopted by the Bank in order to establish the fair values of the financial instruments which are
shown above,

Cash and cash equivalents, balances with central banks and placements with banks
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, balances with central banks and placements with banks approximate

their fair value as those are short-term in nature. These balances have a contractual remaining maturity of less than three
manths from the reporting date AT “’L'"'
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34,

34.c

Financial assets and liabilities (cont.)
Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortised cost (cont.)

Loans and advances to other customers
More than 863 of the total portfolio of loans and advances to other customers have a remaining contractual maturity of
less than one year,

The fair value of loans and advances to other customers with a residual maturity of less than one year penerally
approximates the carrying value, subject to any significant movement in credit spreads,

The estimated fair value of loans and advances with a residual maturity of mare than one year is the present value of
future cash flows expected to be received from such loans and advances calculated based on interest rates at the
reporting date for similar types of loans and advances. Such loans include both fixed and floating rate loans. Majority of
the floating rate loans can be re priced either quarterly or semi annually while for fixed rate loans, the loan contract
allows the Bank to change the contracted rate if there is a material differance between the contracted rate and the
market interest rate.

Due to other customers

Almost 100% of the customer deposits are either repayable on demand ar have 3 remaining contractual maturity of one
year or less. Customer depasits with a contractual maturity of more than one year are subject to pre mature upliftment.
Amounts paid to customers in the event of pre mature upliftment would not be materially different to its carrying value
as at date. Therefore fair value of customer deposits approximates to their carrying value as st the reporting date.

Other borrowings

Other borrowings mainly consist of securities sold under repurchase agreements which have s remaining contractual
maturity of less than three months. Accordingly, carrying value of these borrowings would not be materially different to
their fair values as at the reporting date.
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MCB BANK LIMITED - SRI LANKA BRANCH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER

35. (iii) Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Bank's financial assets
and liabilities as at 31 December 2024,

Within 12 After 12 Total
Months Manths

Interest bearing assets
Balances with central banks 100,041,208 100,041,208
Placement with banks 513,111,502 513,111,502
Loans and receivables to other custamers 9,269,340,234 1,031,520,660 10,300,860,894
Investment securities at FVYOC 11,995 687,711 - 11,995,687,711
Non Interest bearing assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 380,321,626 - 380,321,626
Balances with central banks 485,380,880 - 485,380,880
Placement with banks 2,120,001,304 2,120,001,304
Derivative financial instrument 157,351 - 157,351
Investment securities at FVOC) - 3,030,000 3,030,000
Property, plant and equipment 267,710,777 267,710,772
Right of use assets 134 742 55] 134,742,551
Intanpible assets 23414910 23,414,910
Deferred tax Assots 170,390,499 170,390,499
Current lax Asset -
Other assets 8% 538,977 89,538,977
Total assets 25,123,971,292 1,460,418,893 26,584,390,185
Interest bearing liabilities s
Due to banks 450,197,260 - 450,197,260
Derivative financial instrument - - -
Due to other customers 10,504,536, 388 2,378, 880,447 12,883,416,835
Other borrowings - . -
Lease liability against right of use assot 54,454 047 146,885,905 201,339,952
Non Interest bearing liabilities
Due to other customers 1,134,867,337 2,046,926,594 3,181,793,931
Other borrowings 6,485,468 : 6,485,468
Current tax liabilities BG,077.621 - 86,077,621
Deferred tax liabilitics - - -
Provisions B 33,376,619 33,376,619
Other liahilities £15,220 449 615,220,449

12,236,518,122_. 5,421,290,014 17,457,908,136

Interest rates sensitivity gap

12,887,353,170

(3,760,871,121)

9,126,482,049
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36,

Related party disclosures

The Bank carries aut transactions in the ordinary course of its business on an arm's length basis at commercial rates with
parties who are defined as related parties in 5ri Lanka Accounting Standards Mo 24 on “Related Party Disclosures” [LEAS
24), the details of which are reported below.

36.1  Transactions with Key Management Personnel (KMP)
According to 5ri Lanka Accounting Standards No 24 on “Related Party Disclosures” [LKAS 24), Key Managemeant
Persannel are those having authority and respansibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity.
Accordingly, the Country General Manager, Head of Operations, Head of Treasury, Chief Risk Officer and Departmeant
Head of Compliance of the Bank have beon classified as KMPs of the Bank, who are also the members of the
Management Committes,
{a) Compensation of KMPs 2024 2023
Short term employment benefits 149,164,694 132,162,249
Post employment benefits 4,706,126 4,276,653
153,870,820 136,388,902
(b} Transactions with KMPs
Statement of financial position items
Assets
Loans and advances 7,085,134 6,833,077
Liabilities
Deposits 9,436,818 11,361,089
[c) Direct and indirect accommodation
Direct and indirect accommodation as % of the Bank's regulalory capital, 0055 0.08%
36.2  Transactions with other related parties
In addition to transactions with key management, the bank enters into transactions with entities wilh sipnificant
influence over the bank. The fallowing table shows the outstanding balance and the corresponding interest during the
year,
(a) Related parties Mature of the transaction 2024 2023
MCE Pakistan Vostro balances 1,383,734 1,524,519
Mostro balance
HO Expenseas payable 272,119 4587 129,119 487
Interest expense - 7
HO expensos 143,000,000 133,000,000
MCE Bahrain Deposit 586,620,000 648,000,000
Interest expense 57,019,740 59,268,216
MCB Leasing CISC Arerbaijan Landing 586,620,000 £48,000,000
Deposit 142,173 213,681
Interest Income (7,080,153 71,701,413
MUCB Dubai Placement o 5
Interest Income . 6,913,543
Mastra balance - -
36.2.b Direct and indirect accommodation

Direct and indirect accommaodation as a % of the Bank's regulatory capital % 11%

The above mentioned outstanding balances arose from the ordinary course of business. The interest charged to and by
related parties are at normal commercial rates.

e
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349,

Related party disclosures [cont.)

Transactions with post employment benefit of the bank

Mame of the related party Mature of the transaction 2024 2023

MCE Bank 5Sri Lanka Branch Deposits 15,866,718 49,395 328

Staff Provident fund Interest expenses 2,848,171 19,239,110
Contribution made 20,391,089 19,172,841

Comparative information

The comparative information is re- classified wherever necessary 1o confirm with the current year's classification for
better presentation.

Litigations and claims

In the opinion of the Management, there are no pending litigalions against the company that will have a material
impact on the reported financial results or the future operations of the company.

Going concern

The Management of the Bank has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going concern after considering the
impact of the current cconomic environment and is satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the
foresecable future. Furthermore, the Management is not aware of any matcrial uncertaintios that may cast significant
doubt upon the Bank's ability to continug as a going concern, Therefore, the Financial Statements continue to be
prepared on the going concern basis,

Events occurring after the reporting date
There were no events after the reporting date which reguires adjustments or disclosures in the Financial Statements,




Supplementary Basel lll disclosures (unaudited)
Appendix 1

MCB BANK LIMITED - 5RI LANKA BRANCH

Basel 11l - Disclosures under Pillar 3 as per the Banking Act Direction Number 01 of 2016

Disclosure 1

Key regulatory ratios - Capital and liquidity

Sri Lanka Ope ratiEr]_

Selected Performance Indicators As at As at

e _ 31-12-2024  31-12-2023
Regulatory capital (LKR 000) A '
Commaon I:w._ﬁlg Tier 1 Capital £A08,312 __S,H;EI_-,-#E_&_
Tier 1 Capital B 7908312 8,180,486
Total Capital ) 8,030,521 8,313,164
Regulatory Capital Ratiu_[‘.ﬁ] .

Commaon Equity Tier 1 Capiﬁi Ratio E_Minimum Hequirement - .F.li'l'lfl%:l e 61.10 53.79
Tier 1 Capital Ratio (Minimum Requirement - 8.50%) 61.10 53.79
Total Capital Ratio (Minimum Reguirement -12.50%) 6204 5466
Regulatory Liquidity

Statutory Liguid Asscts | LKR D00) 14,368,303 17,129,440
Statutory Liguid Assets Ratio % Minimum requirement 20% - . _ :
_Total Bank Operatians (%) - Al i
.L.tdijiidij.y_ Coverage i{;fiu {%)- Bupee (Minimum Begquirement - 1002%5) ok \_58.5 03 411]
"Ij.quiﬂitﬁr.{;werage Hatio (%)- Al currencies {Minirmum Reguirement - 100%) 929 132




Appendix 1 (cont.) [ Disclosure 2

MCB BANK LIMITED - SRI LANKA BRANCH
Basel Ill - Disclosures under Pillar 3 as per the Banking Act Direction Number 01 of 2016

Basel Ill Computation of Capital Ratio

Amount (LKR 000}

Item As at As at
31-12-2024 31-12-2023

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) Capital after Adjustments 7,908,312 &, 180,486
:Commfn Equity Tier 1 (CET1) Capital 8,164,451 8,320,339
l.-:.q UI-I_".I' ‘i,apital (Stated Capital)/Assigned Capital - 3,969,508 3,969,508
Reserve Fund ) 349,142 281,160
Published Retained Eammgsﬂﬁccumulated Retalneﬁ LDsses] 3,103,578 3,313,277
Published Accumulated Other Camprehensive Income {OC1) ]‘42..223 ?55:394
General and Gthl'_:r Db5E|DSEd Reserves = i S sE
Unpublished Current ‘I’Ear-;;_F-‘_r;f‘l_'tFItc:s.s nnd Gains reflected in QCI a
Ordinary Shares issued by Ll:lr‘lsnhdatcd_gz;l-‘:li-l-rlar.‘l-rj.ﬁm.a—rEl-é.l-S.L:lh.sldlaric: of the Bank and held by
Third Farties - -
Total Adjustments ta CET1 Capital 256,139 135,853
Goodwill inet] = w5
Intangible Assets inet) - 73415 31,940
Others (specify) 232,724 107,909
Additional Tier 1 {:QTIJ Capital after Adjustments - 3 Sk
Additional Tier 1 (AT1) Capltal = 2 2 - . = -
Qualifying Additicnal Tier 1 L'apltal Instnlments a = =
Inslruments issued by Consolidated Banking and Tinancial Subsidiaries of the Bank and held b‘l,f - =
Third Parlies
Total Adjustments to AT1 Capit:ai- . -
Investment in Own Shares = = =
(Mhers (specify) ETE e
Tier 2 Capital after Adjustments 122,209 132,678
Tier 2 Capital 172,209 132,678
Cualifying Tier 2 Capital Instruments
Revaluation (Gamns i i -
Loan Loss Provesions 122,209 132,678
Instruments issued by Consclidated Banking and Financial Subsidiaries of the Bank and held by
Third Parties -
Total Adjustments to Tier 2 I -
Inwestment in Own Shares — 2
Others [specily) i T =
CETI Capital 7,908,312 8,180,486
Total Tier 1 Capital 7,908,312 8,180,486
Total Capital 8,030,521 8,313,164

Amount (LKR ‘000)

Item As at As at
31-12-2024 31-12-2023

Total Risk Weighted Assets [RWA) 12,943,917 15,208,282
RWAs For Credit Hisk 9,776,721 10,614,242
RWis for BMarket Risk 79,605 67,737
RWAs for Operational Risk 3,087 550 4 526,303
CET1 Capital Ratio (including Capital Conservation Buffer, Countercyclical Capital Buffer & Elit0 pige
Surcharge on D-51Bs) (%) -
of which: Capital Conservation Buffer (%) -
of which: Countercyclical Buffer (34) - i Sl D
of which: Capital Surcharge on D-51Bs (%) B
Total Tier 1 Capital Ratio (%) LTt s3ga
Total Capital Ratio {including Capital Conservation Buffer, Countercyclical Capital Buffer &
Surcharge on D-518s) (%) 62.04 54.66

of which: Capital Conservation Guffer ()
of which: Countercyclical Buﬁer 1%#
of which: Capital Surcharge an D-51Bs (%)




Appendix 1 (cont.)

MCB BANK LIMITED - SRI LANKA BRANCH

Basel lll - Disclosures under Pillar 3 as per the Banking Act Direction Number 01 of 2016

Disclosure 3

Computation of Leverage Ratio

Amount (LKR ‘000)

As at As at

Item 31-12-2024 31-12-2023
Tier 1 Capital 7,487,111 7,106,068
Total Exposures 20,630,855 29,201,299
On-Balance Sheet ltems (excluding Derivatives and Securitics 25,831,822 28,663,187
Firancing Transactions, but including Collateral)
Derivative Exposuras
Securities Financing Transaclion Exposures . |
Other Off-Balance Sheet Fxposures 781,661 506,168
Basel lll Leverage Ratio (%) (Tier 1/Total Exposure) 28.11% 24.33%




Appendix 1 (cont.)

MCE BANK LIMITED - SRI LANKA BRANCH

Basel lIl - Disclosures under Pillar 3 as per the Banking Act Direction Number 01 of 2016

Disclosure 4

Bael lIl Computation of Liguidity Coverage Ratio - All Currencies

Amount (LKR '000)

As at As at
31-12-2024 31-12-2023
Item

Total Total
Total Un- : Total Un- i
. Weighted g Weighted

weighted Value weipghted Value
Valug Value

Total Stock of High-Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA)

12,384,301 12,384,941

11,810,538 11,210,538

Total Adjusted Level 1A Assets

12,384,941 12 384,941

11,810,538 11,810,538

Level 1 Assets

12,384,941 12,384,941

11,810,538 11,810,538

Total Adjusted Level 2A Assets

Level 2A Assets

Total Adjusted Level 2B Assets

Levol 2B Assets

Total Cash Outflows 20,832,790 5,330,046 22,245,226 6,456,255
Deposits 9,368,151 436,815 10,863,700 1,086,370
Unsecured Whalesale Funding 6,103,479 3,921,765 6,814,100 4,825,976
Secured Funding Transactions e=
Contingent Funding Obligations 5,361,160 471,406 4,561,426 543, 9049
Additional Requirements ; - -
Total Cash Inflows 6,322,736 4,670,413 6,813,307 5,039,180
_l‘:-'l'_aturing secured Lending Transaclions Backed by Collateral e -
Committed Facilities b -
Other Inflows by Counterparty which are Maturing within 30 Days 6,322,736 4,670,413 6,813,307 5,039,180
Operational Deposits - -
Other Cash Inflows - -
Liguidity Coverage Ratia (%) (Stock of High Quality Liquid

Assets/Total Net Cash Outflows over the Next 30 Calendar Days) 929.44 731.73

*lm




Appendix 1 (cont.)

MCE BANK LIMITED - SRI LANKA BRANCH
Basel 11l - Disclosures under Pillar 3 as per the Banking Act Direction Number 01 of 2016

Disclosure 5

Basel Il Main Features of Regulatory Capital Instruments

Description of the Capital Instrument

Assigned Capital As
at
31-12-2024

lssuer

MCB Bank Pakistan

Unigue Identifier {e.g., 15IN or thnmhérg Identifier for Private Placement)

Governing Law(s} of the Instrurment
Original Date of Issuance

Far Value of Instrument

Perpelual'o r Dated

Pakistan

M/

N/A

Original Maturity Date, if Applicable

Perpatual

Amount Recognised in Regulatory Capital {in LKR "000 as at the Reporling D‘alej- =

Accounting Classilication H_?q_uit',r,fji:ia bility)

MfA
3,969,508
Equity

Issuer Call subject to Prior SUJ.'l-_gt_"iﬂsqrf Approval

Optional Call Date, Contingent Call Dates and Redemption Amount [LKR 000}

Subsequent Call Dates, if Applicable

E:-[rpa ﬂ._f;‘fpi\l'idﬁ nds

Fixed or Floating Dividend/Coupon

Coupon Rate and any Related Index

Mon-Cumulative or Cumulative

Convertible or Non-Convertible

A

N/

M/A

IF Convertible, Conversion Trigger (s}

IF Con -.rert_ih!_n:__FuIIv or Partially

N/A

If Convertible, M andatory or Optional

If Conwvertible, Conversion Rate

N/A

N/A

M/A




Appendix 1 {cont.)

MCB BANK LIMITED - SRI LANKA BRANCH
Basel lll - Disclosures under Pillar 3 as per the Banking Act Direction Number 01 of 2016

Disclosure 6
Summary Discussion on Adequacy/Meeting Current and Future Capital Requirements

The Bank prepares the strategic plan covering a period of 5 years on a rolling basis by taking in to account af the Capital Adequacy
Ratio (CARL. The Bank analyses the CAR against increases in risk weighted assets in line with the budget expansion and business
volumes.

Currently the Bank is adequately capitalized and its capital adeguacy ratio (CAR) is well above the minimum regulakory requirements.
Bank has a well-diversified assets portfolio which is neither overly exposed to any counterparty nor to any sector, Further, the Bank
will deliberate on strategically curlailing risk weighted assets expansion, if required,

The Bank abways strive Lo achieve the reasonable profit growth in line with the banking industry average and the repatriation of profit
to Pakistan is based on the minimum requirement set by the State Bank of Pakistan. Part of the profit generated is retained for the

fulure business expansion. Capital gensrated through retained profit over the years could be considered as one of the primary source
of capital to the Bank,



Appendix 1 (cont.)

MCE BANK LIMITED - SRI LANKA BRANCH

Basel Il - Disclosures under Pillar 3 as per the Banking Act Direction Number 01 of 2016

Disclosure 7

Basel Ill Credit Risk under Standardised Approach —Credit Risk Exposures and Credit Risk Mitigation [CRM) Effects

Exposures before Credit
Conversion Factor (CCF) and  Exposures post CCF and CRM

RWA and RWA Density {%)

CRM - B
31_:';;:':'24 On - Balance Off -Balance o A Off -Balance Py
Sheot Sheat PraL Sheet RWA Density (%)
Amount Amount Amount
i LKR'000  LKR'000  LKR'000 LKR ‘000 LKR '000 LKR '000

Claims on Centrat Gc:\rer;'l_ment and CBSL 12,217 606 T 12,277,606 =

Claims on E:lreign Sovergigns and their i

Central Banks " B i

Claims on Public Sector Entities 3,030 - 3,030 3,030 100.00

Claims on Official Entitias and Multilateral - )

Development H-anks_ - i

ﬂgi_:_r_!_-j_qq_ﬁan k_s Exposures 2,120,002 - : 2120002 B - 593,212 2708

Claims on Financial Institutions 2,520,091 23613 2520092 4723 1,364,095 54.03

Claims on Corporates i 5313,342 1,472,579 5,313,382 670,750 5,461,155 91.26

Retail Claims B 92,969 5,000 92,969 2,500 92,171 96.55

Claims Secured by Residential Property 231,822 =¥ 294,822 - 244,891 8306

Claims Secured by Commarcial Real Estate 970,092 ML ASH 970,092 103,689 1,073,781 100,00

Non-Performing Assets (NPAs) 2700 242,707 242,450 99.90

.i_ligher risk Categories . SR | i -

Cash Items and Dther Assets 11,082,249 1,082,249 - 701927 6486

Total 24,916,910 1,?5;;_,_@ 24,916,911 781,662 9,776,722 38.04
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Appendix 1 (cont.)

MCE BANK LIMITED - SRI LANKA BRANCH

Basel 11l - Disclosures under Pillar 3 as per the Banking Act Direction Number 01 of 2016

Disclosure 10

Operational Risk under Basic Indicator Approach/The Standardised Approach/The Alternative Standardised Approach

Capital Charge

Fixed Factor ‘m’

Gross Income (LKR '000) As at

Business Lines (20.5.1.4.0.0) Factor (20.5.1.6.0.0) 31-12-2024
1st Year 2nd Year Ard Year

The Basic Indicator Approach 15% 2,565,333 3,308,517 1847126
The Standardised Appt.';:;ach o i -
Corporate Finance = e
Trading and Sales 18% e
Payment and Setllement 18% - ‘. -
Apency Services 15% E -
Asset Manapement el 12%

Retail Brokerage 13% i =

Retail Banking 12% s

Commercial Banking p 15% - =
The Alternative Standa rdisad Approach = - N
subTotal - il
Corporate Finance . 18% o = - U
Trading and SEIE!-S. 18% To. ===
Payment and Settlement 18% . - =
Agancy Services 15% N : e
Asset Managermenl 12% : - = -
Retail Brokerage = 12% } z _ -
Sub Total - - -
Retail Banking ) 12% 0.035 '

Commaercial Banking 15% 0.025
1Capital Charges for Operational Risk (LKR"000)

The Basic Indicator Approach 3,087,592

‘T he Standardised Approach

The Alternative Slandardised Approach -

Risk Weighted Amount for Operational Risk (LKR'000)

The Basic Indicalor Approach 385,949

I'Th'& Standardised Approach

The Alternative Standardised Approach




Appendix 1 (cont.)

MCB BANEK LIMITED - 58I LANKA BRANCH

Basel 1l - Disclosures under Pillar 3 as per the Banking Act Direction Number 01 of 2016

Disclosure 11

Differences between Accounting and Regulatory Scopes and Mapping of Financial Statement Categories with Regulatory Risk Categories = Bank Only

Bank
a b 4 d 3
Earr',li.n;;-.\falue as Carrying Walue  Subject to Credit Subject.t; ) Nut suhiett to
Reported In as under the Risk Framewark  Market Risk Capital
As at 31-12-2024 Published Scope of Framework Requirements or
Financial Regulatory Subject to
Ltatements Reporting Deduction from
Capital
LER "000 LER "000 B LER I]E[E_ LKR "D00 LKR "000
ASSE‘H 23,106,047 23,106,047 - 20,998, 648 2,107,242
Lash and Cash Equivalents 380,322 380,322 330,322
“Balances with Central Banks 485,381 485,381 485,381
“Placements 'mth Banks - -
DErl'uldtl;'_&mFll'l-Ell'lfla! Instrbrr'er't*: 157 157
Other Financial Assets Held-For- T:an:llng s = - —ar
Financial Assets !Demgn ated at Fair Valus thmugh
Profit ar Loss
Lnansand Recﬂ'luahlai to Banks = L
"Loans and Receivables to Other Customers 9,819,611 5HISGI1 7735 R4 7,083,827
TFinancial |n-.-esrments Awailahle- For Sale 11,695,235 11,645,235 11,695,235
Financial Inyestments - Held-To- Maturity
Investments in Subsidiaries - -
Iruve;unénts in Associates and Jmnt Ventures -
Properly, F Plant and Eguipment 3R4,787 384,785 384,789
Investment Propc rtics = - -
Gaodwill E-r'-d Irungm[e ASS:EIS 23,415 23,415 - 23,415
Deferred Iax Assels =
Other A:-.SQLS 317,137 317,137 317,137
Liabilities N 17,236,138 17,236,138 B E
Due to Bank ; 1,295,304 1,206,394
Derivative amm:.ll 1n5truments X -
Other Financial Liabilities Held- Fnr Tradmg
Financial Lizbilities Mesignated at Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss
[e to Other Customers o 14,388 376 14,3R8.37h
Other Borrowings i N
Debt Securitias lssued i
Currant Tax Liabilities 57,857 57,852
Daferred Tax Liabilities - -
Other Liabilities 293,566 293,565
[ue to Subsidiaries &
Subardinated Term Debts =
0Off-Balance Sheet Liabilities 10,388,599 10,388,599 181,661 -
Guarantees S 215,925 215,925 86,103
Pertormance Bonds . 991 991 27,947
Letters of Credit .. £65,399 FR5,399 133,080
Other Contingent ltems 834,006 34,006 27,946 =
Undrawn Loan Commitments . 4,057 882 4,057 852 446,585
Other Commitments 4,614,396 4,614,395 i
Shareholders’ Equity R | i b - —— o p— ——
Enuity Capital {Stated Capital)/Assigned Capital - g _ . - .
af which Amount Eligible for CET1 7,081,244 7,081,244 - B - -
of which Amount Eligible for ATL - P - S
Retained Earnings - 468,417 4RE,417
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income I B2R 24,618
Other Aeserves o 1,021,394 1,021,394
Total Shareholders® Equity 8,595,683 8,595,683 =




Appendix 1 [cont.)

MCB BANK LIMITED - SRI LANKA BRANCH
Basel Ill - Disclosures under Pillar 3 as per the Banking Act Direction Number 01 of 2016

Disclosure 12

Explanations of Differences between Accounting and Regulatory Exposure Amounts

Under S5LFRS 9: “Financial Instruments: Recopnition & Measurement”, the Bank assesses the impairment of loans and advances
individually or collectively based on the principles of “expecled credit loss” {Refer Note 3.1) model which is expected to take into
account future trends in the economy. However, the regulatory provision made on loans and advances under the Direction Mo, 03
of 2008 on "Classification of loans and advances, Income Recognition and Provisioning” {and subsequent amendments thereot)
issued by the CRSL are "time/delinquency base”. Further, under SLERS 9, other debt financial assets not hald at FVIPL, together
with loan comemitments and other off balance sheet exposures such as financial guarantees and letter of credits, are subject (o
impairment provision, whereas no such regulatory provision is required for those financial assets as per CBSL direction. As a result,
SLFRS 9 recognises higher provisions compared to CRSL guidelines.

Financial investments and financial liakilities {other than FVTPL} are carricd at “cost” for regulatory reporting purposes while they
arc classified as "Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income" carried at fair value or Financial
assets/liabilities at amortised cost under the SLFRS 9, The "Fair value" is defined as the best estimate of the price that would be
received to sell an asset or be paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. A variety of valuation technigues combined with the ranpe of plausible market paramelars al a given point in time may still
generate unexpected uncertainty beyond fair value, An "amortised cost” of a financial asset or Ninancial liability is the amount at
which the financial asset or liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or mines the cumulative
amorlisation using the CIR method of any difference betweean the initial amount recopnised and the maturity amound, mines any
reduction for impairment. Hence, the amortised cost of financial investments and financizl liabilities under SLERS 9 s dilferent to
the carrying value Tor regulatory reporting which is the "cost".

As per SLFRS 16, the Bank recognises a lease Hability for leases previously classified as operating leases. Accordingly, the Bank
measures the leasa lability at the present valug of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Incremental Borrowing Rate
{IBR). In addition, the Bank recognises right-of-use asset at an amount equal to the lease liability, on a lease-by-lease basis, adjusted
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease. However as per regulatory reporting, the Bank
charges the operating lease rentals as expense to profit or loss on an accrual basis.



Appendix 1 (cont.)

MCB BANK LIMITED - SRI LANKA BRANCH
Basel Ill - Disclosures under Pillar 3 as per the Banking Act Direction Number 01 of 2016

Disclosure 13

Bank Risk Management Approach

The management of MCB Bank Limited - 5ri Lanka Branch actively drives the risk management framewaork wherein it provides an
active approach in dealing with factors that influence the financial standing of the Bank. With the valpable puidance of
management, the Bank has a proactive approach to generate recurrent earnings and to maximize shareholder’s valus by achieving
an appropriale trade-off between risk and returns. All effective Risk Management Framewark along-with Robust Risk Governance

Structure, Strong Capital & Liguidity Position and Good Quality of Credit Portfolio, remains a cormerstone to accomplish vision of
the Bank,

Empowerment and independence are the basic principles in risk management and it is implemented as a fundamental part of
management's vision. Independence of areas that are responsible for measuring, analyzing, controlling and monitaring risk from
the frontline risk takers (i.e. business soliciting groups) is ensured within the bank,

The management and its Risk Management & Portiolio Review Committes have ensured formulation and implementation of a
comprehensive Risk Management Framewaork. Under managements’ guidance, the Bank execuled risk strategy and continued to
undertake controlled risk-taking activities within the risk management framewark; combining core policies, procedures and process
design with active portfolic management. The Risk Management Framewaork requires strong integrated risk management practices
in key strategic, capital and financial planning processes and day-to-day business processes across the organization, with a goal to
ensure that risks are appropriately considered, evaluated and responded to in a timely manner,
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FINANCIAL STABILITY THROUGH RISK MANAGEMENT
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A clear understanding of risks surrounding the business activities is essential for any organisation to create sustainable stakeholder
value through executing its strategies, It is therefure, essential to reinforce the overall strategy of an organisation wilh a prudent
risk management strategy so that the opportunities could be optimised while minimising the effects of down-side risks. Ranks
which are responsible for the vital role of financial intermediation in the economy should be more commilted to managing their
risks in @ prudent and transparent manner compared to a normal business organisation, Accordingly, Basel Committee an Banking
Supervision has formulated broad supervisory standards and guidelines to incylcate industry best practices across the banking
institutions through 'Basel Accords’ (Basel I, the secand of the Basgl Accords which has been extended by Basel ). While Basel
Accord encourages convergence towards commaon approaches and standards, the ultimate purpose of these rules is to create
financial stability and resilience in financial sector institutions,

MCB BANK LIMITED - SRI LANKA BRANCH APPROACH

MO8 Bank Limited, 5ri Lanka operation has also bean identified Risk Management as the forefront of the future banking business

Accordingly in line with bank’s glabal procedures and praclices, the bank has developed a robust Bisk Management Framewark Tor
its 5ri Lanka operation as well,

INTEGRATED RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Integrated Risk Management Commilles of MCB Bank limited 5ri Lanka operates as the forofront of bank’s Risk Management
functions.

Risk Management functions are underpinned by a comprehensive, Integrated Risk Management Policy, which is constantly evalving
and enhancing to remain relevant and most effective. The policy which is approved by the Board spelis out the Bank's approach to
Risk Management. The policy sets oul the process of identifying, measuring, manitaring and controlling the differem types of risks
and the risk governance structure in place. The main objectives of the framework are;
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To establish commen principles, standards Tor the management and cantral of all risks and to infarm behavior across the Bank,

Provide a shared framework and language to improve awareness of risk management processes amang all stakeholders.
To provide clear accountability and responsibility for Risk Management

To ensure consistency throughout the Bank in Risk Managemenl.

Define the Bank's risk appetite and align its portfolios and business strategy accordingly.

Optimize risk returs decisions:

Maintain/manage the Bank's capital adequacy and liquidity position.

Further strengthen governance, controls and accountability across the arganization.

In addition to the main risks (viz, Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk}, the Bank has considered several other risks which
are material to it. These additional risk categories include, Liguidity Risk, Interes| Rate Risk in the Banking Book, Compliance Risk, IT
Security Risk, Anti-Money Laundering and Reputational Risk.

RISK GOVERNANCE

THREE LINES OF DEFENSE

MCE Bank limited promotes strong risk governance applied rationally and consistently with strong emphasis on the concept of
“Ihree Lines of Defense”. This governance structure encompasses accountability, responsibility, independence, reporting,
communications and transparcncy, bath internally and with external stake holdors.
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RISK APPETITE AND TOLERANCE

Risk appetite is an expression of the amount of risk that the bank is prepared o accepl in creating value to the stakeholders at

large. It is inevitable that the Bank should accept risks, hence risk taken within appetite may give rise to expocted losses, and such
would be analyzed and will be sufficiently absorbed by the expected earnings,

The Bank strives Lo make the integraled risk management function as one of its most critical core competency. Bank relies upon the
overall policy Tramework Lo ensure the maintenance of consistent high standards in its operations and to encourage the risk
decision making process by raising the risk awareness that could hinder the risk and return relationship.

CREDIT Ri5K

Credit risk refers to the potential loss of interest, capital or value of the collateral due to an obligor’s failure to meet the term of a
contract or otherwise failing to perform as agreed. Credit risk can arise from both on and off balance sheet activitios consisting of
contingent liahilities incurred by the Bank and due to the Bank, from counterparties such as letters of credit, letters of guarantoe

ete, The Bank has adopted stringent credit risk management process to mitigate the risk associated with the loan book by way of
following stratepic initialives;

Credit risk management organization structure incorporating a Credit Risk & Review Unit reporting to Chief Risk Officer (CRO)
whao in turn reports (o the Group Heoad — Risk Management at Head office level

Well documented policies and procedures on credit granting (bank - wide risk management, credit risk management, loan
review mechanism and review of such policies on periodically.)

Instructions and guidance to employees in credit chain on annually/quarterly review of credit facilities, credit origination and
maintenance procedures and guidelines for portfolio management,

Established accountability of branch managers, relationship managers and business unit heads for managing risk within rick
management framewaork of the Rank.

Assignment of borrower risk rating for all general credil facilities,

Risk based pricing: When a borrower’s credil risk increases, the Bank demands a higher credit risk premium by way of
increasing the inlerest rate.

Established independent Cradit Administration Unil Lo ensure gccuracy and maintenance of security documentation of credit
facihties and limit selting.

Established credit risk imits for risk rating and concentration an segment, industry, geography, and personal banking products.

Indepandent loan reviews carried out by the Group Audit Department as a special assignment by way of pre and post
disburssment examinations of credit papers in order to ensure Lthe quality of the loan book.

Impairment on the potential delinquants by way of reviewing objective evidence assessments by the business units and
adequacy of impairment provisions to absorb credit risk of the lending book,

A constant stress testing methodology is applied on all significant credit exposures and stress tests are carried out on a regular
Brasis,
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MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk associated with movements in market factors, including foreign exchange rates, intersst rates, equily prices
and commaodity prices which have an impact on the Bank’s income ar the value of its portfolios. Its effective recognition could

minimize the potential loss of earnings or economic values arising principally from customer driven transactions and banks relevant
investmernts,

[he categories of market risk of the Bank ara:

. Interest rato risk
v Foreign cxchange risk
. Equity price risk
. Commaodily price risk

Market risk exposures arising from the trading book are managed by the Ireasury Department whilst the non trading activities
relating to market risks are managed through the ALCO (Assets and Liabilities Committee).

The Integrated Risk Management Committee (IRMC) is responsibile for policies and other standards for the control of market risk

Market Risk goals are clusely monitored by Treasury Middle Office and discussed on a periodic basis for appropriate and tirmely
action.

The Bank measures Lhe risk of losses arising from future potential adverse movements in market rates, prices and volatilities vsing
VaR methodology. VaR, in general, is a guantitative measure of market risk that applies recent histarical market conditions to
estimate the polential future loss in market value that will not be exceeded in a set time period at a set statistical confidence laval,
This exercise is carried out by Treasury Middle Qffice with the help of Bloomberg system. Results arc reviewed periodicslly at the
Integrated Risk Management Committec (IRMO) mestings.

Stress Lesling is an integral part of the market risk management framewoark and considers both historical markel events and
torward-looking scenarios. A consistont stress-testing methodology is applied to trading and non-trading books. Repular stress-tests
are carried oul on liquidity risk (both bank specific and market specific scenarios), foreign exchange risk and equity risk,

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Bank will encountar in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities (hat are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. It is the policy of the Bank to ensure that adeguate liguidity is maintained in all
currencies to meet its obligations. This is performed through cash flow management, maintenance of liquidity ratios such as
statulory reserve ratio, statutory liquid asset ratio, liquidity coverage ratio and advances Lo deposit ratio,



Appendix 1 (cont.)

MCB BANK LIMITED - 5RI LANKA BRANCH
Basel Il - Disclosures under Pillar 3 as per the Banking Act Direction Number 01 of 2016

Disclosure 13 [cont.)

MAMNAGING INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest Rate Risk is the risk to the Bank's earnings and capital that arises out of meeling customers’ demands for interest rate-
related products with various re-pricing profiles and the bank's interest rate mismatch strategy. As interest rates and yield curves
change aver time, theoretically the Bank may be exposed to a loss in earnings and capital due to the re-pricing structure of all on-
and off-balance sheet items, Movements in interest rates can affect the Bank's earnings by changing its net interesl income
(MIl).Changes in interest rates also affect the economic value of the bank's assets, habilitics and off balance shest items. An
effective risk management process that maintains interest rate risk within prudent lovels is essential nol only to safety and
soundneass but also Lo the Bank's profitability.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES COMMITTEE (ALCO)

The Bank’s exposure is controlled by limits approved by the Board which are monitored by the Assets and Liabilities Committes,
ALCO overlooks the management of the Bank's overall liquidity position, and is responsible for Liguidity Risk and Interest Rate Risk
Management of the Bank and implementation of liquidity management policies, procedures and practices approved by the
management. This is achieved through proper representation of key business heads, frequent ALCO meetings and continuous
monitoring of the liquidity position of the Bank through reports submitted by Treasury Middle Office.

OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational Risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequale or failed Internal Processes, People, and System or from Cxternal
events.

Operational Risk is refevant to every aspect of the Bank’s business and covers a wide spectrum of issues. Losses arising through
fraud, unauthorized activitics, errors, omissions, inefficiency, and system failure or from other external events fall within the
operational risk definition. Bank follows below detailed process to ensure that the Operalional Risk is within the tolerance limits,

. Loss event data collection

Loss event data are historic and backward looking which provides valuable insights inlo current operational risk exposures, All staff
members are responsible to report risk/ loss events as soon as they perceive or materialize and are responsible to record such risk/
loss events immediately as an actual loss, a potential loss or a near misses.

. Risk & control scif-assessment (RCSA)

In a RCSA program, branches and departments takes the ownership of its own risks & controls and assess the risks that may exisl in
its area. RCSA programs are done an a set frequency to assess the risk areas of the bank and apply controls where necessary.

. Ad-hoc incident reporting
Bank encourages staff to repart any operational lapses or potential or actual frauds directly to designated senior management
officials as described in the Bank's Whistleblower policy, if the staff member is fearlul to route the concerns through the line

management. Bank views this method as a useful method of communication to reduce potential losses to a greater extent and
proved effective.

. MNew product, service or process launch

Prior to launching new products, services or processes, the owners must evaluate the risks as per new product policy and then to
incorporate sufficient safe guards,

. Staff Training

Internal training sessions are conducted to enhancefinculcate the need of risk reporting for new recruits and refresher trajning
sessions would also be conducted for existing staff.
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COMPLIANCE RISK

Compliance risk is the current and prospective risk to earnings or capital arising from violations of, or nonconformance with, laws,
rules, regulations, Money Laundering and terrorist financing, prescribed corporate governance practices, internal policies and
procedures, or ethical standards. Compliance risk also arises in situations where the laws or rules governing certain bank products
ar activities of the bank’s clients may be ambiguous or untested. This risk exposes the institution to fines, penalties, payment of
damages, and the voiding of contracts, Compliance risk can lead to diminish reputation, limited business opportunities, reduced
expansion potential, and an inability lo enforce contracts. Bank has identified this risk as a material risk and various internal
controls, policies, proceduras are in place o manage risk.

REFUTATION RISK

Reputation Risk refors to the potential adverse effects, which can arise from the Bank's reputation being tarnished due to factors
such as unethical practices, regulatory actions, subsidiary associate company's actions, customer dissatisfaction and complaints,
negalive/adverse publicity ctc. The Bank remains committed to continuously strive to maintain and improve its reputation in all the
businesses il operatas.

IT RI5K

In the wake of increasing financial cyber-crimes, IT Security has become one of the important areas of banking operation.
Accordingly a comprehensive IT Security platform has been developed by bank's IT team to gpuide, monitor and implement
necessary processes and procedures specificd in the Information Security Policy {I5P) to align with the bank's overall Risk
panagement Framewark. The purpose of the |5P to protect the cyber threats and ensure [T security of the bank.
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Risk management related to key risk exposures

The guantitative disclosures relating to key risk areas such as credit, market, liquidity, cperational and interest rate risk in the
banking book are presented and discussed in the Financial risk management report in note 6.
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MCB BANK LTD

SELECTED PERFORMAMNCE INDICATORS/KEY FINANCIAL DATA

AS AT 31-12-2024

Item

Regulatary Capital Adequacy (LKR in Millions)
Commaon Equity Tier 1

Tier 1 Capital

Total Regulatory Capital

Regulatory Capital Ratios [%)

Common Eguity Tier 1 Capital [%) {Minimum Regquirement: 7%)
Tier 1 Capital Ratio (%) (Minimum Reguirement; 8.50%)

Total Capital Ratio (%) (Minimum Requirement: 12.50%)

Basel 1l Leverage Ratio [Minimum Reguirement : 3%)

Regulatory Liquidity Requirement

Liguidily Coverage Ratio (%)- (Minimum Reguirement @ 100%)
Rupee [5%5)
-4l Currency [3)

Met Stable Funding Ratio (%) - (Minimum Requirement : 1005%)

Assets Quality
Impaired Loans (Stage 3) to Total Loans, Hatio (%)*
impairment (5tage 3} to Stage 3 Loans, Ratio (%)*

Income and Profitability

Met Interest Margin [35)

Return an Assels (before Tax) (%)
Return on Couity (%)

Cost to Income Ratio (%)

Memorandum Information
Credit Rating

Mumber of Employees
Mumber of Branches

* Including Undrawen Parbion of Credit

Current Period
31-12-2024

7.908.31
7.808.31
8,030.52

61,10
£1.10
62.04

FE11

58471
9249.44
235.57

G117
1076

582
143
4.249
A40.04

Ab {lka)
115

5

Previous Period
31-12-2023

8,180.45
5,180.49
§,313.16

53.79
53.7
54.60

24.33

410,10
731.73
23300

(.55
G236

10.73

379
11.049
33.00

116
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